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Financial Highlights
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GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

ER=R

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Year FE —FT-—F ZT-ZF —FT-NF —ZT-1F ZB-ARF
Gross Profit Margin (%) EMZE(%) 353 36.7 36.4 38.1 43.3
OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
KRR =

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Year FE ZE-CZF ZE—=F ZE-NF ZT-hF ZE-RE
Operating Profit Margin (%) B E RN (%) 17.0 18.1 19.5 22.9 23.6
TURNOVER DAYS NOTES
BEpghE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Year FE 2 2= ZZ-@0NF —T-1F ZT-XF
Inventory rE 105 139 114 112 142
Trade and bills receivables AR BRI 152 147 118 121 164
Trade payables FERTERFR 97 131 105 119 152
Cash conversion Re@Eh 160 155 127 115 154
Notes i3
Inventory turnover days = Average Gross inventory balance/(Cost of sales for the year/365 FEEEBH - THFEEHREE (FNHEEKEK /365
days) H)
Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Average Gross trade and bills receivables balance/ B IR R IEM R R EE A 8 — T RUET REK R R
(Turnover for the year/365 days) B/ (FNEEE,/3650)
Trade payables turnover days = Average Gross trade payables balance/(Cost of sales for the ~ ERBRFEE A = FIEMAEHIEE (FREERA
year/365 days) /'3658)

Cash conversion days = Inventory turnover days + Trade and bills receivables turnover days - B #EHRAH - FHEEBH S+ ERERREKZERESEA
Trade payables turnover days #-EAERFASAH



Financial Highlights
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2016 2015 ()
—E-RFE ZT-RF
For the year ended 31 December HEt-A=+-HLEE
(in HK$'000) (F®m)
Revenue WA 2,914,842 2,870,794 +1.5%
Gross profit EH 1,261,994 1,092,490 +15.5%
EBITDA EBITDA 699,477 662,977 +5.5%
Profit before income tax B P45 50 A g A 678,299 657,973 +3.1%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company 722 Bl#H AEEEF 600,908 620,736 -3.2%
Research and development costs MEFR=
(included in administrative expenses) (PHEETHRERA) (183,614) (157,734) +16.4%
At 31 December (in HK$'000) W+=A=+—H(F#Rx)
Total current assets MBEERE 4,220,419 4,020,585 +5.0%
Total assets BERE 4,433,063 4,080,199 +8.6%
Net current assets MENVEEFE 3,295,002 3,033,042 +8.6%
Total equity HESIEE 3,501,283 3,090,599 +13.3%
Per share (in HK$) BR(ERT)
Earnings per share BRREF
— Basic —&XK 0.539 0.560 -3.8%
— Diluted — 88 0.535 0.551 -2.9%
Proposed final dividend per ordinary share BEERTARKRERE 0.04 0.02 +100%
Financial ratios i 3n g2
Gross profit margin EFE 43.3% 38.1%
Operating profit margin RN = 23.6% 22.9%
Net profit margin JFRIEE 20.7% 21.6%
Current ratio BN & 4.6 4.1
Return on equity’ BBl 17.2% 20.1%
Return on assets? BERR? 13.6% 15.2%

Notes

1 Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Equity as at year

end

2 Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total assets as at

year end

(g3

1

2

i B = AT AR i

BENR=-ADARAARGEN FREERE



Bank Card Transaction Flow of Electronic Payment

IRITRKEFZTX B

The following is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction flow in a

typical electronic payment transaction

Cardholder
BFA

Card Issuer

BRBIT ~
(e.g. Bank of China/HSBC)

Card Association

Egit]
(e.g. Visa/MasterCard/China UnionPay)
(#l%1Visa/MasterCard F EI5RH )

Source: Analysys International, CSI

and acquirer.

E-payment Terminals solutions provider sells E-payment Terminals [ |
products and provides related services to merchant service provider

Merchant service provider provides transaction processing solutions [~ |
to merchants by assisting merchants in setting-up their operations

AT EERA—RRITREFXNRFNRFNIE

Distributor
DHE
Merchant Service Provider
R R AR
Commercial Bank or Third Party
Payment Service Provider

BEBTRE =S XN RBHERS

E-payment Terminal Products

BEFXARBER

E-payment Terminal
Solutions Provider
EFXFRIRERR

E-payment
Terminal Products
BFNRBER

EBAR - HBER - FEES

*%321‘1‘”\ MR REEEHEE T XA
“omEm - WIREABRRY TP REHE
A RARERE -

BPREHEREBHBHEPEIERATP,
ARERI N ANER  AEFRERS

to accept cards as a form of payment from their customers. BRIEBFRAR -

1: Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an E-payment  1: HBREAREPEBEFIMEHARIA -
Terminal.

2: The E-payment Terminal sends transaction data to the acquirer. 20 BFINRREARSHEETRERE -

3&4: The acquirer sends authorisation request and verifies with the card  3%4: WEBHEER X RES K WHEBESHEBHE
issuer that the card number and transaction amount are both valid BB REBRERRB RIS EIBAM
through the network of card association.

5&6: The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and ~ 5k6: BEREZERRANERERIIHL TEE -

grants authorisation.

7:  The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant. 7

BERBRNDEREETEP



Some of Our Products (for reference only)

BN ER (EHSE)

SMART E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BRETXNBRLR

General features: Large and high-resolution capacitive touch screen, dual cameras, fast thermal printer. Support all kinds of payments,
including gift cards and loyalty programs.

—RRFFE  FARBERWER - CREE  RERGEITER - IRZIREIMNER  BEER RRERHE -

New model launched in 2016: A920
ZEREHL AR - A920




Some of Our Products (for reference only)

BN LaER (EHSE)

TRADITIONAL E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BEREFXNMRAER

i) Countertop and Wireless E-payment Terminals

EARTFHESAE TN KR

General features: Accept smart card, magnetic stripe card and support credit, debit and a full range of prepaid products,
including gift cards and loyalty programs. Most of the models support QR code application.

—ARAFIE  PIEERVE RN R UXREAR AR RNRERIENER  BEBR TRERE - REMHERAXE=
HEASIER -

New model launched in 2016: Q80
TE-NEHNAFAS - Q80

Other models: $920, S910, S900, S800, S500, S90, S80, S78, S60, S58

EAbAISE © S920 + S910 + S900 ~ S800 ~ S500 * S90 + S80 * S78 ~ S60 * S58

5900 S90 5920



Some of Our Products (for reference only)

BN Em (EHSE)

TRADITIONAL E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BEREFNMRER

ii) Pin Pad Devices
GG RN E

General features: Specifically designed for contactless payment, which comply with various industry standards including

MasterCard’s PayPass and Visa's payWave.
—MEN  ERIEEEANMR - WS ZEZENEE - BiEMasterCard&)PayPass & Visa#ipayWave

New model launched in 2016: SP20 V4 y

W]
TR NFEHLAFRGR : SP20 V4 - y /
< /

o =

i) Multilane Series

SRR AT

General features: Provide a fast and accurate touch response capabilities, and able to be integrated with a variety of POS

systems.
—RREFM - BERRISENBRER ) - WAL S EPOSRMTES o

Models: PX5, PX7, D800

AUSE 1 PX5 « PX7 ~ D800

PX5 PX7



Some of Our Products (for reference only)

BN LaER (EHSE)

MOBILE E-PAYMENT SOLUTION
BEEFXNMRAER

General features: Accept smart card, magnetic stripe and contactless transactions, large memory capacity, and built-in contactless card
reader supports near field communications (“NFC").

—RRIE  ATERERER  MRKOEREAEE - ARACRTE  RERIERERBA(INFC]) IR BE RS -

New model launched in 2016: D220
T NEFHHMFESE - D220

Other models: D210, D200, D180

HAthAYE% : D210 ~ D200 * D180

D180 D200 D210
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Simplified Corporate Chart
RARIBEER

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group'’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of this report.

PAX Global
Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)
(Bermuda)

100%

Pax Technology Limited

Shanghai New Kashuo
Information Technology

Company Limited
(PRC)

4 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Suzhou leasy Information
Technology Co., Ltd.
((Z@)]

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

(" (HK)
100% 100% 100% 70%
Wonder Pax Technology Pax Computer Technology Pax Technology, Inc. Pax Italia S.r.l.
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. (USA) (Italy)
(PRC) (PRC)
51%



Simplified Corporate Chart
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TRABEAHEANHASETIZLENBRARANARARBHE -

100%

BENEERAT

(" (F8)
100% 100% 100% 70%

HEEER AR EREH
Pax Technol , Inc. [ERNAR
GRYI) BRAE GRYI) BRAE A Faxialia St

\ (5B (BAH)
(RE) (RE)
51%

BMNATRES
MEBERAR
(FE)

LR FHRER

BMAERAR
(hE)

BERHREARARN  —B-AFEH 5



Directors and Senior Management

SSEkSREIER

As at 8 March 2017, the date of the Report of the Directors, the biographical
details of the directors (the "Directors”) and senior management of the
Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 54, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company
and the Chairman of Pax Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. ("Pax
Technology (Shenzhen)”). He is responsible for the overall management
and strategic development of the Group. Mr. Nie has over 21 years of
experience in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology Limited
("Pax Technology”) since its founding on 20 March 2000. He was the vice
president of Pax Technology from 20 March 2000 to 1 January 2001 and
the president of Pax Technology from 2 January 2001 to 14 June 2010. He
was appointed as the chairman of Pax Technology on 14 June 2010. Mr. Nie
previously worked as an engineer in the Information Technology Department
of the Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie graduated from Tsinghua
University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Radio Electronics and obtained
a master’s degree in Radio Electronics Engineering from Southeast University
in 1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 December 2010.

LU Jie Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu, aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of
the Company and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group in August 2001 and is responsible for managing all
the business development, sales and marketing functions of the Group. Mr.
Lu has over 16 years of experience in sales and marketing in the electronic
payment industry and served a number of management positions and
executive role at Beijing Order Computer Company (“Beijing Order”), a
system integration company, from 1998 to 2001, including general manager
of insurance department, general manager of marketing department and vice
president of the company. He had also worked as an engineer of the Ministry
of Geology and Mineral Resources of the PRC and the Chinese Academy of
Geological Sciences from 1986 to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995 respectively.
Mr. Lu holds a bachelor’s degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. He
obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. He was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company on 23 May
2013.
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Directors and Senior Management

SSKSREERE

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 53, is an Executive Director of the Company. He is responsible
for risk management and treasury management. He is also responsible for
overseeing operations of Pax Technology of which he has been a director
since 5 April 2000. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the director of Hi Sun Information
Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL”) from 1 August 1997 to 3 May
2005. HSITSL was a Hong Kong company, which was a representative and
purchasing office engaging in general trading and provision of consultancy
services. HSITSL provided consultancy services to Pax Technology from 2002
to 2003. Mr. Li is also the managing director of Hi Sun Limited since 16
August 1999 and an executive director of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
("Hi Sun"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, since 7 June 2001.
He has also been appointed as an executive director of both Hi Sun Limited
and Hi Sun and certain of their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in
1999, he worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong, including
Beijing Order from 1994 to 1995 where he was responsible for investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree in law from the
Peking University in 1989. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 24 February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company on 1 December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an independent
non-executive director of Ju Teng International Holdings Limited (B &R
TR A BR A A]), Far East Horizon Limited ((BRZE{EHFR A A)), Poly Culture
Group Corporation Limited (iR#)30 b £ B KA B R A F]) and Yida China
Holdings Limited ({82 Bl BBR A F]), all of which are companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Yip graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree
in social sciences in 1987. He also holds a bachelor’s degree in laws from
the University of London. Mr. Yip is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company on 1 December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was an assistant
professor at The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology Business
School and The University of Hong Kong School of Business. Dr. Wu has
been teaching International Accounting Standards, US Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards. Her academic
research achievements in identifying US accounting restatements and frauds
were reported by various media, including the Wall Street Journal, New
York Times, Business Week, Fortune, CNN, etc. Dr. Wu used to cooperate
with major accounting firms and the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (US) in research in the areas of accounting manipulation and frauds
by US listed companies. She also provides professional interpretation and
analysis services for investment funds on accounting standards and on listed
companies’ financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from Peking University
with a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994. Dr. Wu obtained a master’s
degree in Economics from Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in Accounting
from Stern School of Business, New York University in 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

SSEkSREIER

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 58, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2010. Mr. Man graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1981. Mr.
Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has practised as
a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as Chan and Lo) in
Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 48, is the executive vice president of Pax Technology
(Shenzhen). He is responsible for the procurement and supplies activities, and
oversees the finance of the operations in Shenzhen. Mr. Luo graduated from
Wuhan University with a bachelor’s degree in economic management. Mr.
Luo has over 20 years of experience in the card payment industry and over 15
years of experience in financial administration and supply chain management.
He joined Pax Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004 as the chief financial
officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served various management
positions including general manager of the Zhuhai Branch of Beijing Order.

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

Mr. Cheung, aged 33, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He
joined the Group in October 2016 and is responsible for overseeing the
business development, finance, compliance, merger and acquisition, and
investor relations of the Group. Mr. Cheung graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
and has over 10 years of financial and accounting related experience. He
is @ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung worked for an international public
accountancy firm and was involved in a number of audit and assurance,
capital market transaction and advisory projects advising corporate clients
including listed companies and conglomerates worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement

FTRHSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global Technology
Limited (“PAX", and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover amounted to HK$2,914.8
million, representing an increase of 1.5% compared to HK$2,870.8 million in
2015. The annual sales volume of electronic payment point-of-sale terminals
("E-payment Terminals”) was 4.5 million units, which was one of the
meaningful milestones for PAX.

In 2016, profit before income tax was HK$678.3 million, representing an
increase of 3.1% compared to HK$658.0 million in 2015. Gross profit margin
for 2016 was 43.3% with an increase of 520 basis points compared to
38.1% in 2015.

In 2016, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$600.9 million, representing a decrease of 3.2% as compared to
HK$620.7 million in 2015. Basic earnings per share for the year was 53.9 HK
cents (2015: 56.0 HK cents).

Turnover from overseas markets of the Group was HK$1,656.7 million,
representing an increase of 23.5% as compared to HK$1,340.9 million in
2015. All overseas business units recorded growth, especially the United
States of America and Canada Region (“USCA"). Moreover, the proportion of
the total revenue of the overseas markets over the Group's total was 56.8%,
as compared to 46.7% in the corresponding period last year.

In 2016, the PRC market (excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan)
(the "China Market"”) was highly challenging and recorded a turnover of
HK$1,258.2 million, representing a decrease of 17.8% as compared to
HK$1,529.9 million in 2015. The decrease in the turnover of the China
Market was mainly due to the indirect influence of the new interchange rate
payment policy, the temporary trend of adopting low-cost mobile phone card
readers by micro merchants, keen price competition and the depreciation of
Renminbi ("RMB").

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 10,000,000 of its own
shares. The Board believes that the share repurchases are in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders and would lead to an enhancement of
the net assets value per share and/or earnings per share of the Company.

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend of HK$0.04 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$0.02
per ordinary share, amounting to approximately HK$44,315,000 (2015:
HK$22,240,000).
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OUTLOOK

According to the global ranking of shipments in 2015 as stated in The Nilson
Report published in September 2016, an authoritative magazine in the
payment industry, the growth in shipment volume of PAX reached 38%. By
each of the regional rankings, PAX also took the leading position in most of
the regions, proving that PAX has been one of the global mainstream brands
through years of effort.

In 2016, overseas markets was a growth factor for our sales and recorded
substantial increase in revenue share. PAX realised encouraging achievements
in mature markets such as the United States of America (“US") and Italy, and
further secured its leading position in certain emerging markets, such as the
Middle East, Latin America and the Commonwealth of Independent States
("LACIS") and the Asia Pacific Region (except for Mainland China) (“APAC").
Apart from further strengthening technical support to existing global partners
and distributors, PAX also seeks for local partners with good reputation and
distinctive operational capabilities in major markets.

In the China Market, PAX maintains its leading position through various
market transformations. As one of the leaders providing middle-to-high-
end products, PAX is well-recognised by financial institutions and third
party payment service operators (the “Operators”) for its products. We
will continue to maintain our strong foothold in China to consolidate our
domestic market shares. In view of the increasing demand for multi-functional
E-payment Terminals from domestic Operators and industrial applications,
we focus on smart terminals, value-added solutions services and research and
development ("R&D") of new technologies and products and will continue
to launch new products that meet market expectations so as to enhance the
sales of the Group's E-payment Terminals.

The core value of PAX is the emphasis on R&D and quality. This year, PAX
launched four new products that were well received in the market. The
Group will continue to put more resources in R&D and expand the R&D
team for new products development and existing products optimisation to
meet the needs of customers worldwide. As of the end of 2016, the number
of employees in the R&D team was 945, accounting for 55% of the total
employees of the Group. Furthermore, PAX will actively explore cooperation
opportunities with technology enterprises that are advanced in technical
knowledge and upstream supply chain management to further enhance our
R&D capability.
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Chairman’s Statement

FTRHSE

In 2016, following the successful acquisition of Nanchang Kashuo Information
Technology Company Limited (“Kashuo"), the Group began offering value-
added solutions services in China. This diversification of the Group’s payment
services helped boost the services revenue to 5.4%. In December 2016,
the Group entered into an agreement with the quotaholders of CSC ltalia
S.c.a.r.l. to acquire and subscribe for 60% of the equity of CSC ltalia S.r.l.,
with the aim of strengthening the Group's after-sales services and customer
relationships in Italy. The expected completion of the acquisition of CSC
ltalia, together with the acquisition of PAX Italia S.r.l. in 2015, will further
consolidate the Group’s market position in Italy.

In the coming year, PAX will continue to strengthen its role in the global
payment industry value chain and will strive to enrich and diversify its
revenue model. With our comprehensive portfolio of E-payment Terminals,
our superb technical support services, and leveraging on Kashuo and the
new smart E-payment Terminal line, PAX will continue to gain a better
insights into consumer spending patterns, which in turn will allow us to
explore the possibilities of implementing big data solutions so that we can
provide even more added value to merchants worldwide. In overseas and
domestic markets, PAX management will put more resources into ensuring
the development of value-added solutions and services. We also continue to
proactively explore merger and acquisition opportunities and other strategic
partnerships to provide enhanced value to both customers and shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% Bl
The key financial figures for the year ended 31 December 2016 are extracted EHZE-Z—A"F+-_A=+—HUIFENFEHBEH
as follows: BRI
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2016 2015
—B-R"% ZT-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT +(-)
Revenue WA 2,914,842 2,870,794 +1.5%
Gross profit EH 1,261,994 1,092,490 +15.5%
Other income HAap g A 71,593 109,235 -34.5%
Selling expenses HEFX (297,396) (235,715) +26.2%
Administrative expenses THEHR (347,098) (308,037) +12.7%
Profit before income tax bR PTG R R & Al 678,299 657,973 +3.1%
Income tax expense Fre#iF S (74,865) (37,687) +98.6%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company N2 B3 8 A &1 % F 600,908 620,736 -3.2%
EBITDA EBITDA 699,477 662,977 +5.5%
Research and development costs el
(included in administrative expenses) (BEETHERA) (183,614) (157,734) +16.4%
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RE ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET +(-)
Total current assets MBEEHRE 4,220,419 4,020,585 +5.0%
Total non-current assets FRENVEELE 212,644 59,614 +256.7%
Total assets EEBE 4,433,063 4,080,199 +8.6%
Total current liabilities MBAEESR 925,417 987,543 -6.3%
Total non-current liabilities FERBEELTE 6,363 2,057 +209.3%
Total liabilities BEBE 931,780 989,600 -5.8%
Net current assets MEEEFE 3,295,002 3,033,042 +8.6%
Total equity RmiEE 3,501,283 3,090,599 +13.3%

12 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis

& 12 [ 72 51 5 53 73 T

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—-BLEE

2016 2015
ZBE-RXE ZZT—EF +/(-)
PER SHARE DATA BREE
Earnings per share for the profit attributable A YNSESY PN
to the owners of the Company ik lioRsT RN
— Basic (HK$) —ER(ET) 0.539 0.560 -3.8%
— Diluted (HK$) —EE0ET) 0.535 0.551 2.9%
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-A=1+—-HLEE
2016 2015
“E-RE CZZT—1F
FINANCIAL RATIOS Bt =
Gross profit margin ERE 43.3% 38.1%
EBITDA margin EBITDA & 24.0% 23.1%
Net profit margin e TlpE B 20.7% 21.6%
Revenue L ON

Turnover increased by 1.5% or HK$44.0 million to HK$2,914.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 from HK$2,870.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. Turnover from overseas markets grew by HK$315.8
million to HK$1,656.7 million, representing a growth of 23.5%. Turnover
from the China Market decreased by 17.8% year-on-year or HK$271.7
million to HK$1,258.2 million.

i) Sales by Geographical Region

57%

EEEABE T AFT-A=T—HLLEFEN
28708 BEATTENMIS%HAMOEEETLEEHSE
—E-RF+-AZ+—HIEFEM29148FH 8
BIL e RBBIHINTISE EHIEMISSEEELE
1,656.7 BB BEIT BR235%  RERHATHHE
EERFENE178% X271 THBEBTE25820
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2016 2015
Sales by major region HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBHENERE FHx FAR +6)
USCA 176,669 105,433 +67.6%
LACES 689,902 559,059 +23.4%
EMEA 553,990 456,053 +21.5%
APAC 236,092 220,362 +7.1%
China Market 1.258,189 1520887 [ 17.8%
o 2,914,842 2,870,794 +1.5%
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-—HA=+—-BLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE CZZT-1EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET +/(-)
Overseas markets BINTI
— United States of America and —EHEENERE
Canada Region (“USCA") ( Tuscal ) 176,669 105,433 +67.6%
— Latin America and the Commonwealth —h T EMFIBE BRI R
of Independent States (“LACIS") ( TLACIS] ) 689,902 559,059 +23.4%
— Europe, Middle East and Africa ("EMEA”") — BN - RERIEM ( TEMEA] ) 553,990 456,053 +21.5%
— Asia Pacific Region —nKE (R BEAFESN)
(Except for Mainland China) (“APAC") ( TAPAC] ) 236,092 220,362 +7.1%
1,656,653 1,340,907 +23.5%
China Market M5 1,258,189 1,529,887 -17.8%
2,914,842 2,870,794 +1.5%

Turnover generated from overseas markets increased by 23.5% to
HK$1,656.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from HK$1,340.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Turnover generated from
overseas markets accounted for 57% of total revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, growing from 47% for the year ended 31 December
2015. All overseas business units recorded growth, especially USCA, LACIS
and EMEA region business units. The US, Italy, Brazil and India have become
PAX's key overseas markets. As of the end of 2016, we had over 90 overseas
distributors and partners worldwide.
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Turnover generated from the China Market decreased by 17.8% to
HK$1,258.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, from HK$1,529.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Turnover generated from the
China Market accounted for 43% of total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2016 compared with 53% for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The decrease was mainly due to the indirect influence of the new interchange
rate payment policy and the depreciation of RMB.

ii) Sales by Revenue Category
5%

%

RERETENEEERBEE-_T—R1F+ A
=+ —HIEFEMNI1,52998 88T N E17.8% 2 H
EIE-RFE+ZA=Z+—HILFEMI1,258288
BT BE_E—NE+_A=+—BILEE +H
TSR EBHALEENRY% MBEE-_F—RE+=
A=1+—BI5E8A53% ETRIERGEES
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i) BRABENE X5
[ ) E-payment Terminals
ERS ATy

[ ] Services

AR

Others
Hith

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—HLEE
2016 2015
“E-RE CZ—Z—1F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FER FAT +(-)

E-payment Terminals B8 2,688,301 2,821,008 -4.7%
Services: R -

Payment solutions services TR R RS 125,101 - -
Maintenance services MRS 32,109 29,401 +9.2%
Others* Hh 69,331 20,385 +240.1%
2,914,842 2,870,794 +1.5%

* Amount mainly represented accessory items sold to customers. Examples of such ~ * FHRLBIEENZLPLENRH - BERHBEER

accessory items were download cable, telephone line, thermal paper, sticker and
barcode scanning gun etc.

RBTHER TG BAE  WANKBERERS -
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E-payment Terminals products

E-payment Terminals include smart E-payment Terminals, traditional
E-payment Terminals (countertop and wireless E-payment Terminals, pin pad
devices and multilane E-payment Terminals) and mobile E-payment Terminals.

Turnover from the sales of E-payment Terminals products decreased by
2.9% to HK$2,757.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from
HK$2,841.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Turnover
reduction is mainly due to the decrease in sales in the China Market during
the year.

Services

i) Payment Solutions Services
Turnover from the provision of payment solutions services was
HK$125.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016. Since 2016,
payment solutions services income were mainly generated from the
provision of value-added solutions services in the China Market.

i) Maintenance Services
Turnover from the provision of maintenance services increased by
9.2% to HK$32.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 as
compared to HK$29.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Maintenance services income were mainly generated in Hong Kong.

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2016 was 43.3%,
increase in 520 basis points as compared with 38.1% for the year ended 31
December 2015. The increase was mainly due to an increase of contribution
from overseas sales and provision of payment solutions services.

Other Income

Other income comprised primarily of value added tax refund, interest income
from time deposit and subsidy income. It decreased by 34.5% to HK$71.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 from HK$109.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease
of value added tax refund.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 26.2% to HK$297.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, from HK$235.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. The increase was mainly due to the increase of sales and after-sales
service staff headcounts from newly completed acquisitions.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 12.7% to HK$347.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 from HK$308.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2015. The increase was mainly due to the expansion of
R&D centres and teams and additional headcounts from newly completed
acquisitions.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 98.6% to HK$74.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 from HK$37.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2015. The increase was mainly due to an one-off tax credit that
recognised in previous year.

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the Company and Net

Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company decreased by 3.2% to HK$600.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 from HK$620.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, with the net profit margin decreased to 20.7% for the year ended 31
December 2016 from 21.6% for the year ended 31 December 2015.

OVERVIEW

The Group is an innovative global E-payment Terminals solutions provider,
engaging in the development and sales of E-payment Terminals products
and the provision of relevant services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solutions business”). Owing to its outstanding services and leading position,
PAX is one of the fastest growing suppliers in the payment industry which
possesses the most advanced production facilities, excellent R&D capabilities
as well as sales networks and cooperation channels around the globe. Today,
the Group has a huge customer base and works with over 90 distributors or
partners from all over the world. The Company sells products to over 100
countries and regions and has established a strong global presence.
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Since 2010, the global shipment volume of E-payment Terminals has grown
by at least 10% each year. As a result of years of effort, PAX recorded
remarkable growth in both domestic and overseas market shares with
exceptionally rapid sales growth in overseas markets in the preceding
years. PAX has successfully gained global recognition and established
distinctive reputation. In 2016, overseas revenue contributed 57% of the
Group'’s total turnover, as compared to 22% in 2010. With increasing
contribution of overseas revenue, together with PAX's solid position in the
China Market, which set for us to approach the target of becoming one of
the global leading providers of E-payment Terminals solutions. PAX is the
only mainstream E-payment Terminals solutions provider in Asia capable of
competing with major international peers. PAX is well positioned to become
a global leading E-payment Terminals solutions provider through capturing
expansion opportunities arising from industry consolidation, further growing
market shares in E-payment Terminals sales markets, and increasing revenue
generated from transaction services and solutions.

MARKET ANALYSIS AND INDUSTRY TRENDS

Overseas Markets

The E-payment business has been undergoing rapid development globally.
According to industry report forecast, the number of E-payment Terminals
with NFC function installed globally will grow at a compound annual growth
rate of 17.9% from 45 million units in 2016 to 86.9 million units in 2020,
which depicts a market expectation that the market demand for E-payment
Terminals with NFC function will continue to remain strong. According to
The Nilson Report issued in September 2016, the shipments of E-payment
Terminals in USCA grew roughly by 70% in 2015, primarily due to the
E-payment Terminals replacements brought by the Europay, MasterCard, and
Visa (“EMV") migration. The shipments of E-payment Terminals in the Middle
East and Africa region and the Latin America region also increased by 46%
and 11% respectively in 2015. Meanwhile, the penetration rates of E-payment
Terminals in some emerging markets (e.g., In Brazil, 20-22 units of E-payment
Terminals were installed among every 1,000 people in 2015) remain relatively
low as compared to the mature markets (e.g., In the US, about 40-43 units
of E-payment Terminals were installed among every 1,000 people in 2015).
The popularity of electronic payment and technological enhancement will
accelerate the pace of domestic financial electronification. In APAC, the
penetration rates of E-payment Terminals in some countries are still low
(e.g., In India, Indonesia and Malaysia, approximately 5 units of E-payment
Terminals were installed among every 1,000 people in 2016). Driven by the
trend of cashless transactions as well as supportive government and market
policies, the demand for E-payment Terminals in overseas markets is expected
to record a robust growth in the coming years.
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USCA

In 2016, PAX achieved fruitful results from the implementation of a sales
strategy focused primarily on small to medium-sized merchants in the US
and recorded an increase of 67.6% in revenue. Despite the delay of EMV
certification, which brought uncertainties to the market growth in the US in
the interim, it is expected that the demand for E-payment Terminals in the US
will continue to increase substantially in the coming years. According to the
estimates of industry experts, at the end of 2016, there were approximately
5 million units of E-payment Terminals in the market which required EMV
upgrade/replacement, accounting for approximately 35-40% of the installed
E-payment Terminals in the US.

Since the establishment of Pax Technology Inc, a subsidiary of PAX, in the
US in 2008, PAX has been striving to develop integrated payment solutions,
streamline merchants’ payment processing procedures, and reduce operating
costs. PAX's comprehensive product line with high quality and electronic
payment solutions are well received and widely-used by merchants in the US
market, it is expected that PAX will grow substantially in the US market in the
coming years.

EMEA

Europe is one of the most well-developed regions of card payments, with
strong security awareness of payment terminals and readiness to accept
emerging technologies, such as NFC, which makes it one of the key markets
for E-payment Terminals. Despite PAX's relatively low market share in the
European market, PAX has successfully expanded its market share in Italy
since the acquisition of Pax Italia S.c.a.r.l. in 2015. PAX achieved encouraging
sales growth in the Italian market in 2016 with a shipment volume of nearly
100 thousand units which was raised by 200% as compared to 2015. At
the end of 2016, PAX further entered into an acquisition and subscription
agreement with CSC ltalia S.c.a.r.l., one of the largest local service providers
for installation and maintenance of E-payment Terminals and other electronic
equipment in Italy. The expected completion of the acquisition will further
strengthen the Group's capacity to provide installation and maintenance
services to key customers and will consolidate PAX's market position in
Italy, making Italy an indispensable growth engine in Europe and overseas
markets. PAX strives to enhance the Group’s brand recognition in the rest
of Europe through local partnership, and establish PAX as a mainstream
payment terminals and solutions brand in the future. PAX's leading position
in the Middle East region, along with its organic growth and accelerated
launch of new products in 2016, further solidified the Middle East region as
a sustaining driving force of the EMEA region. In Africa, PAX maintained a
steady growth in 2016, the Group expects a gradual market share growth in
the future.
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LACIS

In 2014, PAX became the first provider of E-payment Terminals to obtain
all the necessary certifications for mobile payment terminals (“mPOS”) in
Brazil. In 2016, PAX continued to be the dominant market leader for mPQOS,
and successfully diversified from its leading mPOS offering into the supply or
traditional payment terminals. Notwithstanding the unfavourable economic
factors in Brazil, such as exchange rate fluctuations and the decline in gross
domestic product, the demand for E-payment Terminals in the Brazilian
market persists to grow. According to the data from the Central Bank of
Brazil, the volume and amount of credit card transactions in Brazilian market
for the first nine months in 2016 increased by approximately 9% and 7%
year-on-year respectively, demonstrating that the unfavourable economic
factors had not significantly hindered the growth of payment industry. Owing
to the increasing brand recognition, Brazil is expected to continue to be the
growth engine in LACIS region.

In other parts of the Latin American region, such as Argentina and Chile,
stable revenue growth was recorded. In the Russian market, according to
a market research, the number of NFC-enabled E-payment Terminals has
increased from about 90,000 units at the end of 2015 to more than double
at the end of 2016. Accordingly, PAX's NFC-enabled D200 were deployed on
all metro ticket machines in Moscow in 2016, PAX's market recognition has
further enhanced.

APAC

According to data from the Reserve Bank of India in December 2016,
approximately 1.7 million units of E-payment Terminals were installed among
the population of more than 1 billion people in India, indicating a relatively
low penetration rate compared to other countries. With the implementation
of demonetization policies, such as banknote replacement last November
and the reduction of electronic transaction charges in December, PAX
expects an impending increase in demand for mobile payment terminals in
India. PAX will continue to invest additional resources in India to capture
these opportunities. Last August, PAX was a key player in the launch of
innovative payment services throughout the country, in partnership with
Airpay, a leading Indian payment gateway solutions provider, and the Bank
of Maharashtra. Several thousand of PAX's innovative D200 mPOS, equipped
with general packet radio service (“GPRS") communication were deployed.
In the last quarter of 2016, PAX established a strategic partnership with
Ezetap, India’s leading smart payment solutions company, who began to
mass-deploy PAX's mPOS products so as to provide Indian consumers with
payment products and services that meet international standards. In 2016,
PAX recorded revenue growth of more than double in India. In light of
PAX's increasing resources, supportive government policies and our partners’
market influence, we expect that India will become one of the major sources
of growth in the APAC region in coming years.
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PAX has maintained a solid position in different parts of APAC and is one of
the leading suppliers of E-payment Terminals in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
Vietnam and New Zealand, characterized by its comprehensive product
line and adaptiveness to local infrastructure environment. At the end of
2016, PAX joined hands with Thai Smart Card to deploy secured contactless
payment solutions in 7-Eleven convenience stores across Thailand. 7-Eleven
convenience stores in Thailand will gradually roll out PAX's E-payment
Terminals and security software that support NFC contactless payment, credit,
debit and related card transactions.

China Market

Mainland China is the world's second largest economy with huge business
opportunities yet to be explored. The E-payment Terminals market in
China will continue to have stable demand and growth. According to the
publication of The People’s Bank of China (“PBoC") in relation to the China
Payment Industry for the third quarter of 2016, the bank card acceptance has
continued to improve and consumers have continued to develop recurring
habits to make payment with bank cards. As at the third quarter of 2016, a
total of 6.015 billion bank cards have been issued, representing an increase
of 10.5% or 573 million cards compared to the same period in 2015, with
a per capita bank card possession of 4.39 (third quarter of 2015: 3.85). In
December 2016, China UnionPay has partnered with 27 commercial banks
and launched “Cloud QuickPass”. Not only the Cloud QuickPass supports
the Host Card Emulator ("HCE") payment method, but it also supports the
NFC payment platforms of major mobile phone manufactures such as Apple,
Samsung, Huawei, and Xiaomi. The number of E-payment Terminals that
support Cloud QuickPass has reached 10.5 million units. The increase in
the number of issued bank cards, the trend towards cashless payments and
the replacement cycles of terminals will continue to drive the demand for
E-payment Terminals in the China Market.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid, the indirect influence of the new interchange
rate payment policy, the temporary trend to adopt low-cost mobile phone
card readers by micro merchants, keen price competition and the depreciation
of the RMB have created intensive challenges to the China’s E-Payment
Terminals market.

o On 6 September 2016, the PBoC began to implement the new
payment policy of interchange rates. The implementation of new
payment policy substantially decreased the merchant’s transaction cost
for card payment. Although the new policy will bring uncertainties to
the payment market in the interim, it will have positive impact to the
industry in the long run in the way of promoting standardisation and
arousing the focus on compliance and quality.
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o Some payment providers have introduced low-cost mobile phone card
readers in China, imposing certain pressures on the demand and pricing
of the traditional payment terminals. In December 2016, PBoC issued a
notice in respect of the guidance on payment terminals, including: (1)
no entities and individuals are allowed to engage in online trading of
payment terminals (including mPQOS) and card readers; and (2) banks
and payment institutions shall suspend all business functions with the
merchants that involve irregular use of card accepting terminals or use
of the same at premises which cannot be located. The notice has driven
a greater demand for payment terminals with quality and security,
which would have positive stimulation to PAX’s mPOS with high quality
yet relatively low-cost.

o During the year, the revenue derived from the China Market was
encumbered by the devaluation of RMB. However, most of the Group's
sales costs, sales expenses and administrative expenses (including R&D
expenses) are denominated in RMB, the RMB depreciation has also
brought benefits to the Group's operations as a whole.

In recent years, the payment modes have been changing fast. The demand
of domestic merchants for multi-functional E-payment Terminals has been
increasing, in particular, the need for E-payment Terminals equipped with
QR code payment function and the expectation of E-payment Terminals
providing value-added solutions services. In regard of these, PAX has
responded quickly and efficiently. All new products of PAX support QR code
payments, and some E-payment Terminals without such functions have also
undergone upgrades like the addition of a QR code scanner. On the other
hand, the Group, after completing the acquisition of Kashuo, in March
2016, a software platform provider began to offer value-added solutions
services in China. In 2016, Kashuo established subsidiaries in 18 different
cities in the PRC. It mainly introduces the bank cards promotion to merchants
and provides merchants with solutions services by offering membership
management platform and sales activities platform. Together with the use
of PAX's smart E-payment Terminal, A920, merchants can offer all kinds of
payment methods (including QR code payment) with the aforesaid value-
added solutions services to their customers. In 2016, total revenue generated
by Kashuo from its value-added solutions services was approximately HK$125
million. This diversification of the Group's payment services helped boost
service revenue to 5.4% of the Group's overall revenue, with a growth of
approximately 400% year-on-year.
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Offline Payment Remains Dominant

According to the market research report, global retail sales in 2016 amounted
to approximately US$22 trillion. However, retail e-commerce sales amounted
to approximately US$2 trillion, representing less than 10% of global retail
sales. This demonstrated that offline business still made up the vast majority.
In addition, nearly 50% of retail e-commerce sales came from Mainland
China. It can be seen that emerging online payment methods such as
electronic wallets like Alipay, Wechat Pay and Jingdong Pay in Mainland China
are developing rapidly but have not hindered the room for growth of offline
payment. Instead, they have enabled the “New Retail” model combining
online and offline sales to become the trend of the future retail industry. In
overseas market, North America represents approximately 20% of total retail
e-commerce sales and is the world’s second largest retail e-commerce market.
Although online payment dominates the field of small amount shopping,
offline payment still takes priority in terms of general consumption, especially
for large amount consumption or large scale merchants after taking security
concern, tax control and commission charge into consideration. PAX as an
E-payment Terminals solutions provider has its irreplaceable advantage.

MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES

The corporate culture of PAX is adherence to compliance and prudence while
incorporating perseverance and creativity. The foundation of the payment
industry is security of transaction for consumers and merchants while PAX
places a strong emphasis on the provision of secured and user-friendly
payment solutions for them.

Exploring More International Sales Channels

In recent years, PAX's recognition has been rising in the international market.
Management will continue to put more resources on developing sales
channels and distributors, and further increase the market shares for different
product lines in various overseas regions.

In key markets (e.g. The US, Brazil, India, Italy, Russia, and the Middle East,
etc.), we will be more active in strengthening communication and relationship
with our partners and provide greater support in more aspects. We will also
explore the possibilities of developing more sales channels through M&A
and different forms of strategic cooperation with our partners. Meanwhile,
management will continue to explore opportunities for increasing revenue
from transaction services and value-added services.

Maintaining Leading Position in the China Market

In recent years, domestic merchants had higher demand for the E-payment
Terminals functions and value-added solutions services. With this trend
continuing in China in the future, we will focus on smart terminals and
R&D of new technologies. Meanwhile, we will continuously introduce
new products and services that meet market expectations, maintain and
strengthen our solid market position.
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There has been strong promotion of the smart terminals by banks and third-
party operators in 2016, revealing an increasing market demand for smart
terminals. The increase in the sales and market share of smart terminals will
generate synergies with our value-added services that create more values for
merchants and increase the Group's revenue.

The core value of PAX is the emphasis on R&D and product quality. While
we continue to develop new products and improve product quality, one of
our priorities is to develop technologies that can adjust product cost more
effectively so as to increase our price competitiveness. In view of the demand
for payment terminals with quality and security imposed by the authorities
concerned, we will put more efforts and resources to promote PAX's mPOS,
which is in high quality yet relatively low-cost, as to satisfy the needs of
smaller merchants in the market.

As the payment market in China becomes more regulated, merchants will be
more demanding on more safety and better quality of E-payment Terminals
in the long run. With our continuous strong emphasis on product quality and
R&D, PAX will have an irreplaceable advantage. We are confident to maintain
a leading position in the payment terminal industry in the China Market.

Extending the Payment Value Chain

The provision of value-added solutions services and payment-related services
for both domestic and overseas customers will be one of the Group's future
directions. PAX has currently earned a spot in the global payment software
and hardware sectors. By virtue of our extensive overseas and domestic
networks in the E-payment Terminals markets, we will further advance
towards diversified payment services.

In 2016, following the acquisition of Kashuo, the Group began offering
value-added solutions services in China. This diversification of the Group's
payment services helped boosted the Group’s service revenue from 1.0%
to 5.4% of the Group's overall revenue. Backed by PAX's extensive sales
network in China accumulated over the years, the number of Kashuo's
merchants had increased rapidly from approximately 2,000 at the end of
2015 to approximately 13,000 at the end of 2016, and it is expected that the
number will continue to grow rapidly in the coming years. Through Kashuo
and smart terminals, we will continue to gain better insights into consumer
spending patterns, which in turn will allow us to explore the possibilities of
implementing big data solutions so that we can provide even more added
value to merchants worldwide.

In both overseas and domestic markets, the management will continue to put
more resources into developing value-added solutions services. At the same
time, we will explore different M&A and strategic cooperation opportunities
for the expansion of the payment value chain.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the years of 2015 and 2016, the main source of funding to the Group
was the proceeds generated from operating activities in the usual course of
business of the Company. Certain financial data is summarised as follows:
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As at 31 December

W+=ZA=+—~H
2016 2015
—E-Rf ZT-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITIEFLERE 2,207,205 2,144,312
Net current assets TEBEFE 3,295,002 3,033,042
Net cash generated from operating activities REERBEENIRES TR 249,507 317,135
Net cash used in financing activities BEEHMANIES T (91,376) (4,097)

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
Current ratio (times) BN R (5 4.6 4.1
Quick ratio (times) BB K (F 3.9 35

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash at bank and on hand and
short-term bank deposits of HK$2,207.2 million (2015: HK$2,144.3 million)
and no short-term borrowings (2015: Nil). As at 31 December 2016, the
Group reported net current assets of HK$3,295.0 million, as compared
with HK$3,033.0 million as at 31 December 2015. For the year ended 31
December 2016, net cash generated from operating activities was HK$249.5
million, as compared with HK$317.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. For the year ended 31 December 2016, net cash used in financing
activities of HK$91.4 million as compared with HK$4.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Capital Structure and Details of Charges

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any borrowings or charge
on Group assets, and the gearing ratio is not applicable (2015: Nil). As at
31 December 2016, approximately HK$1,356.5 million, HK$721.5 million,
HK$103.3 million, HK$25.3 million and HK$0.6 million (2015; HK$1,029.0
million, HK$849.0 million, HK$246.4 million, HK$19.9 million and nil) of the
Group's cash balances were denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
United States dollar (“US$"), European dollar (“"EUR") and other currency
respectively.
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Significant Investment
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group held no significant
investment as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil).

EARRE
BRAFHRREIN  ARER T RFT+_A=1—
AYESEENEARE(ZT—0F &) -

MBATRMNEAKBREHE
BRAFREEN AEBRBEE-F
ST ALFEYETREANKHBER
(ZZE—AhF &)

—~E+ZA
AlES L E

Use of Proceeds FrEZIERAE
The net proceeds raised from the global offering received by the Company AR BB E2KEEHEHMEHIEFHELAS05.98
were approximately HK$805.9 million. BAET-
As at 31 December 2016, the planned and utilised amounts of usage of total KT —ARFT+ZA=+—0 - BFERIBFEVT
net proceeds are as follows: BB kEBASENT
Planned Utilised
amount amount
GEeE CHASE
HK$ million HK$ million
HEBER HEBER
Enhancing research and development effort IARHER A 3224 3224
Expanding distribution network TR AR 120.8 120.8
Potential merger and acquisition B 282.1 96.6
General working capital —ReEBEES 80.6 80.6
805.9 620.4
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets BEARERELREEMNRRGE
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for material ~ BRAFHRFAWEN  R_ZT—F+_A=1+—H"

investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its turnover, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, HK$ and US$. The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies. Currently, the Group
has not entered into agreements or purchased instruments to hedge the
Group's exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates of
HK$ or RMB may have an impact on the operating results of the Group.

The management considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect to
US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions denominated
in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the same functional currency.
The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. The Group
manages foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was
1,729. The following table shows a breakdown of employees of the Group by
functions as at 31 December 2016:

HZREE
AEER - RFT A=+ HIEBEMEARRK
REBE(ZF—hF &)

ANERRFHMBEE
RZB-R"F+-A=1t—H AREREELHAS

1,729 A TREIR=_E—
BREEONSERESA

NE+ZA=+—HBE

Management EEE 14
Sales and after-sales services and marketing HEREERRBURTHIER 599
Research and development iz 945
Quality assurance =L 25
Administration and human resources THRANEIR 54
Accounting &35 54
Production, procurement and inventory control HE - RKBREFEES 38

1,729

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive and
competitive. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus
annual performance related bonuses. Share options are granted to employees
of the Group to reward their contributions under the share option scheme of
the Company, details of which are set out in the Report of the Directors. The
Group also sponsors selected employees to attend external training courses
that suit the needs of the Group’s businesses.

Disclaimer:

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures, such as EBITDA,
are used for assessing the Group's performance. These non-GAAP measures are not
expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should
not be considered as an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as
a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance the
overall understanding of the Group current financial performance. Additionally because the
Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the Group considers
the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our financial reporting.

ARERREFMLHEEERARS N - BEHOFHH
REBAETHSE  AmMEXRBABOFREIEL - Bik
BDRBEARRBBET R T AKE RS ABMH K
SHEENER  AREHBENEZERE - AKEN
SEYERBZNTARKEEBT BOINFEIRE -

RERY

FLBEIRAER

ETHLREHRUEENARTEAEENRE - film
EBITDA. BEZE AR RARIRU BB RR T RAIA
R A AIEIE - JURM A EE AR RSB IE L -
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Corporate Governance Report

EREBHRS

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board in ensuring
effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and
accountability of all aspects of operations and that its business is conducted
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Group's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to
the Group's needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
(the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In formulating its corporate governance practices, the Company has applied
the Principles and complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements. The Board also reviews the Group's employee handbook,
training and continuous professional development of the Directors and the
senior management, to ensure that operations are conducted in accordance
with the standards of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the Code for Securities Transaction by Directors
regulating Directors’ transaction concerning securities of the Company, on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year.

The Company has also established the Code for Securities Transaction by
Employees with terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
Model Code for securities transaction by senior management and employees
who are likely to be in possession of any inside information of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

FPHREIBHS

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company's business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should make decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its powers for its decisions on all major matters of the
Company which include the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s) or a Director(s)), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers and
relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed.

Each Director may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as to the powers,
the scope of delegation and relevant arrangements were given to the senior
management and subject to periodic review to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary before
the senior management entering into any material transactions and assumes
significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge its
responsibilities.

Composition
The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity perspective
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The balanced
compostition of executive and independent non-executive members upholds
the effective excercise of independent judgement of the Board.
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The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

An updated list of Directors identifying their role and function and whether
they are independent non-executive directors is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship between
the members of the Board, in particular, between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive, if any, are provided in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election at the
annual general meeting.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years, commencing from 23 May 2016 for Mr.
Lu Jie and 20 December 2016 for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenijin, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of the respective service
contract.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the occasion of his/
her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under applicable laws, rules and regulations and the Group's
various governance and internal control policies. Besides, the Company will,
at its expense, arrange and provide suitable training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of its Directors.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has arranged and funded in-house trainings for Directors in the form of
physical seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training
received by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 according
to the records as provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors

ARESBEREF2AREFRERR  UERLE
HRENMALTE - ARAICEBETEER S
FREFER{FINIER  REELHLEDH NI
il REEFRENCE  EERBEE_T—AF
T A=+ RULEFERINEIIHENT

Training on
corporate governance,
inside information and

other relevant topics

TEER  ABHEER

EEnE H b = BRI H
Executive Directors BITEE

Nie Guoming 5 B A v
Lu Jie E A \
Li Wenjin ENE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Yip Wai Ming 28 v
Wu Min R B v
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X B v

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of legal action against the Directors and officers against losses or liabilities
sustained or incurred from execution of their duties. The insurance coverage
is reviewed on an annual basis or any intervals as deemed appropriate by the
Board.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four regular Board meetings were held during the year for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and respectively the final
results for the year ended 31 December 2015, quarterly results for the three
months ended 31 March 2016, interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2016 and quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September
2016, and considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the four regular quarterly
meetings of the Board (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of the Board
in compliance with the CG Code), Audit Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings and general
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below :

REENBE-_T"F+T_A=1TRLFEHE
MEFRFEEFSER(TREEMIHRTHTE
HESSERMRBLEERTAMEFEXENE
WEMER) BHRREEEE  RAZBEERE ¥

MZEeg@ RSN ERNZEFHIIMT -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

SHLE/BIRY

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Regular

Committee Committee Committee Board
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings* General
ERZEE REZEE FMzEe FHRESS Meetings
Name of Directors s =6 =6 = BE BRRAE
Nie Guoming e NATNEA N/ATEA NATER 4/4 22
Lu Jie EA N/ATER N/ATER NATER 4/4 2
Li Wenjin EXE N/ATE 17 22 4/4 2
Yip Wai Ming REH 33 17 22 4/4 2
Wu Min RE 33 17N 212 4/4 22
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles B 33 N/AT i £ N/ARNE 44 2

* Not all Directors were required to attend the rest of the meetings which mainly dealt ~ * VI EESHEHETERBHITHENILERHE

with approval and implementation of executive policies and administrative routine.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting have been
made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been served to all Directors at least
fourteen days before the meetings. Reasonable notice, as permitted under
relevant circumstances or otherwise agreed, has been given for other Board
and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been responsible
for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking into account any matters
the Directors proposed to include, ensuring that all Directors are given
opportunity to include matters in the agenda and approving the agenda. In
order to enable the Directors to make informed decision, meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers, together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors or all committees members
at least three days before each Board meeting or committee meeting (as the
case may be) to keep the Directors appraised of the latest developments and/
or financial position of the Company and to such Board papers and related
materials must be in a form and quality sufficient to serve their purpose. The
Board and the individual Directors would also have independent access to the
senior management to make further enquires or when they require further
information, in addition to those volunteered by the senior management
above, to properly fulfill his duties whenever necessary.
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The Company Secretary attended all regular Board meetings and, when
necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on statutory
compliance, corporate governance matters and to ensure that the Company’s
policies and procedures were properly followed.

The Company Secretary is responsible to prepare and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes recorded sufficient
details of matters considered, decision reached, concerns raised and, if
any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes were
circulated to the Directors for comment and records within a reasonable time
after each meeting respectively. The final version is kept by the Company
Secretary and open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder of the Company or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened
physical Board meeting, at which independent non-executive Director having
no material interest to the transaction should be present, along with other
Directors whether interested in such transaction. The Company’s Bye-laws
also contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their close associates have material interest.

Chairman and Chief Executive

In accordance with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles and
responsibilities, performed by Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Lu Jie respectively,
as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the
"CEQ") have been clearly divided and defined. The clear division of the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of business
ensured a balanced power and authority such that no concentration of power
should vest in either individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and establishes corporate governance procedures. With the support
of the Company Secretary and the senior management, the Chairman is
also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable,
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively participate
in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture to facilitate effective
contributions and encourages the Directors to express dissenting views and
concerns and allow sufficient discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved
and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations and is also responsible for developing strategic
plans, formulating and reviewing the organisational structure, control systems
and internal procedures and processes for the Board's approval.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide range of business
and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation in board
meetings, offer independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts on interests
arise, serving on the various Board committees, examining the Company's
performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives and monitoring
performance reporting, the independent non-executive Directors has become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors also attended the
annual general meeting(s) of the Company, details of which are set out in
page 32, enabling them to obtain more balanced understanding of the views
of the shareholders.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Wai
Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, has appointed for a
contractual term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly basis and subject
to re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. Such term shall be
terminated in the event: (i) by either party giving the other not less than two-
month written notice; or (ii) forthwith without compensation, on the ground
of disqualification, gross or willful misconduct or neglect, or any failure of
passing a resolution by the shareholders of the Company to be re-elected as
a Director, whichever is earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors, with at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. To comply with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, independent non-
executive Directors represented half of the Board throughout the year ended
31 December 2016 which is higher than the minimum one-third requirement
under the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that it has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director concerning his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Comapny considers that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, for overseeing
specific aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each Board committee was
established with defined written terms of reference setting out its authorities
and duties and requiring the Board Committees to report back to the Board
on their decisions or recommendations (unless restricted by regulating
requirements). The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and hard copies of
which are available to shareholders upon request.

Each Board committee consists of a majority of and is respectively chaired
by an independent non-executive Director. Chairman and members of each
Board committee as at the date of this report are set out below:

Audit Committee

AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

AMAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
AWU Min (Chairman)
AYIP Wai Ming

*LI Wenijin

Remuneration Committee
AYIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*L1 Wenjin

A Independent non-executive Director

* Execuive Director

The Board committees have been provided with sufficient resources
to perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December 2010
with written terms of reference which was amended in compliacne with
the requirements under Code Provision C.2.3 of the CG Code and adopted
by the Board on 28 December 2015. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors (including at least one member
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee under the revised terms of reference
include, among others, the following:

(@)  to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the Company'’s staff responsible
for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer
or external auditors before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditors
with reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors;

() to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, the Group's financial control, internal control and
risk management systems, associated procedures and adequacy of
resources available to its internal audit functions; and

(d)  to consider and identify risks of the Group and consider effectiveness
of the Group’s decision making processes in crisis and emergency
situations and approve major decisions affecting the Group's risk profile
or exposure.

The written terms of reference which describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference to the CG
Code and "“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2016 to review quartely, half-yearly and annual financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control
and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit function,
the auditor’s independence and objectivity. The Audit Committee has
also recommended the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
Company’s external auditor and the Board confirms that it has taken no
different view from the Audit Committee in relation to the recommended re-
appointment.

At the end of 2016 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the written terms of refenence approved, in compliance with the
requirements under Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, include the
review of the structure, size and composition of the Board, developing
and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to the
balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the requirements of
the business of the Group and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary. It has been an
underpinning philosophy of the Company to maintain diversified selection
criteria in its hiring process, taking into account a wide range of attributes
including age, educational background, professional experience, industry
skills and expertise and such policy was recorded in writing by the Nomination
Committee for the selection process of Directors on 28 February 2014. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has taken up the mantle of
reviewing such diverse selection philosophy at the Directors’ nomination level,
and helped maintaining a solid slate of Directors with diverse perspectives
and varied educational background and expertise made-up, from in-
depth knowhow in the payment industry, sales and marketing talents to
professional qualifications in the legal and accounting fields. Each Director
has accumulated experience in his respective field of expertise for at least 10
to 30 years. Regardless of the background or experience of each Director,
they are all anchored by the common trait of having a natural aptitude and
singular drive for the industry and this is also the ultimate attribute in the
Company's selection process that the Nomination Committee will uphold and
protect.

To facilitate sustainable and balanced development of the Company,
the Nomination Committee adopts a board diversity policy under which
appointment and/or recommendation for appointment will be based on
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including, among others, the candidates’ gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. Decisions of the Nomination Committee are made
based on the merits and contribution of the selected candidates.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31
December 2016 to review and recommend the re-appointment and re-
election of Directors, and adoption of the procedures for proposing a person
for election as a Director.
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Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws 84 and 85, Mr. Nie Guoming, the
Chairman and an executive Director and Mr. Li Wenijin, the executive Director,
shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2017 annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM").

Following the recommendation of Nomination Committee, the Board has
further recommended Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin standing for re-
election at the AGM.

The Company's circular dated 16 March 2017 contains detailed information
of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration
Committee were set out in its terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements under Code Provision B.1.2 of CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which is determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the remuneration
policy and structure and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management and other related matters. The human
resources department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations on remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman
and/or the Board about these recommendations. The Remuneration
Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 to
review and recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management of the Company, to establish a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy for the remuneration of the Directors,
assessing performance of the executive directors and approving the terms of
their respective service contracts.
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Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration payable
to the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out below:

BREBECEERTATFABEIEBISEK  REE
—NET AT HIEFERARNE S 2 ENS
EBABHHEIMOT

Enll

/

Number of

individuals
Remuneration band 4 n AH
HK$0 to HK$ 1,000,000 0/&JCZE 1,000,000 % 7T 1
HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,000/8 7T E 3,000,000 7T 1
Further particulars relating to Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid 1R FH BB+ BT HEEBESHE LTS
individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing &3 A TH#E —F515 - HREAMBEHERWE 10
Rules are set out in notes 10 and 33 to the consolidated financial statements. %330
Corporate Governance Function P EEEREEE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
and determining the relevant policies of the Company. Terms of reference
in compliance with the requirement under Code Provisions D.3.1 of the CG
Code, adopted by the Board include the duties of the Board on corporate
governance functions to develop and review the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and the senior
management, to review and monitor the Group's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct, guidelines and compliance manual applicable
to employees and Directors and to review the Group’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and complying with other financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 68 to 74.
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Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient explanation
and necessary information enabling the Board to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before the Board for
approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospectus in sufficient detail.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company'’s Internal Audit Department (the “IA Department”) performs
internal audit function and the Board is responsible for overseeing and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group on an ongoing basis.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-up approach
for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all business unit levels
and across all functional areas.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee is responsible
for identifying the risk of the Group and deciding on the risk levels and the
Board is responsible for assessing and determining the nature and extent
of the risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic
objectives. After discussing and taking into consideration the risk response,
the relevant departments and business units shall be assigned to implement
the risk management solutions in accordance with their respective roles and
responsibilities. The identified risk together with the risk response will be
recorded at the risk register and subject to the Board's oversight.

Main features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company include the establishment of a risk register to keep track of
and document identified risks, the assessment and evaluation of risks, the
development and continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their effectiveness.
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An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Company for
identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of
its objectives. The judgement of the risk is mainly determined in accordance
with the likelihood of occurrence and consequence of occurrence of the
risk, which can be categorized into 3 classes, classifying the degree of risk
impact as: Minor (1), Moderate (2) and Significant (3), and the probability
of occurrence of risk as: Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3). The risk
degrees reflect the level of management’s attention and risk treatment effort
required.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The IA Department has performed two reviews of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems respectively covering
the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 to 31
December 2016 in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision
C.2 of the CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and approved
by the Audit Committee covering the Group’s material controls in financial,
operational and compliance aspects. IA Department reported directly to the
Audit Committee and the Audit Committee is satisfied that there has been
no major deficiency noted in the areas of the Company’s risk management
and internal controls systems being reviewed after implementation of
recommendations of the internal control defects reported by IA Department.
Accordingly, the Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems to be effective and have been implemented with adequate resources.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has established the Inside Information Policy for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Inside Information Policy stipulated
the obligations of the Group, restriction on sharing non-public information,
handling of rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemptions and
waiver to the disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures. Management of the
Company must take all reasonable measures from time to time to ensure that
proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company. They must promptly bring any possible leakage or
divulgence of inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer
who will notify the Board as soon as reasonably practicable accordingly for
taking the appropriate prompt action. In the event that there is evidence of
any material violation of the Inside Information Policy, the Board will decide,
or designate appropriate persons to decide the course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding the likelihood of its recurrence.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in respect
of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$2,100,000. There was no non-audit service provided by
the external auditor of the Company during the year.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(@) Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General
Meeting
Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition for a
special general meeting not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company, and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at General
Meetings
Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paidup
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings
of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders may together,
at their expense, provide a written request to the attention of the
Company Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put forward proposals at general
meetings.

(c) Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board. At the annual
general meeting and special general meeting held during the year,
the Directors were made available to answer questions in accordance
with the requirements under the CG Code. The Company's external
auditor also attended the 2016 annual general meeting to answer any
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and its independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary to direct their
written enquires.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company also maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.
hk, where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Constitutional Documents

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIZ - HEBKREIBHRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report, as the first Environment, Social and Governance ("ESG")
report of the Group, aims to disclose the overall policies, commitments and
strategies on the sustainable development of the Group during the reporting
period which covers the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.
Unless otherwise stated, this report mainly covers the Group’s Hong Kong
headquarter and our wholly-owned operating subsidiaries with operational
control in the PRC. The above mentioned Group’s companies in Hong Kong
and PRC represent the core of our business, contributing almost 90% of the
Group's turnover in 2016.

We have prepared this report to disclose our performance in ESG in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the “ESG Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules published by the Stock Exchange.

We welcome any opinions and suggestions with regards to this report and
our sustainability performance. Please contact us by email to IR@pax.com.hk.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Since PAX was established, we have been upholding the mission of “Becoming
a Leading Global Player”. Through unremitting efforts, the Group has laid
a solid foundation for its business development and set for us to approach
the target of becoming one of the global leading providers of E-payment
Terminals solutions. As a responsible corporate citizen, we emphasize
integrity and incorporate ESG principles into our daily operation and
management, striving to create long-term value for stakeholders.

We believe that sustainable development is one of the core values of
the Group. Not only is it closely related to the Group's performance on
environmental protection and community contribution, it is also the
foundation of the Group including business practices and our relationship
with employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners.
During the reporting period, the Group has formulated the “ESG Policy”
to promote and manage matters related to social responsibilities such as
environmental protection, health and safety, conduct and ethics as well as
compliance with laws and regulations. Details of our management approach
to sustainable development of different areas have elaborated in this report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholders’ support and trust are of the utmost importance to the Group’s
continuous steady business growth over the years. Our major stakeholders
are those groups which are significantly influenced by, or have the ability
to influence, the Group's business, including customers, business partners
and suppliers, employees, shareholders and potential investors, and local
governments and communities. We firmly believe that communication with
stakeholders not only helps us better formulate our business strategy in
response to their needs, but also enables us to forecast risks and consolidate
the stable development of our business and the community. By virtue of
the active communication with stakeholders, through formal and informal
channels and on a regular basis, in the course of our day-to-day operation,
we have been able to identify certain significant ESG related issues which will
be discussed in this report.
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PEOPLE-ORIENTATION

The Group fully acknowledges that employees are the main driving force
for accomplishing corporate missions and business strategies. Therefore,
the Group has strived to become a good employer by focusing on people-
oriented management and attaching great importance to human resources
management. We attract excellent talents through fair recruitment policy,
provide employees with training opportunities, career development prospects
and growth opportunities for employees. We are committed to providing
employees with an ideal work environment. As an equal opportunity
employer, we respect principles such as diversity, equality and anti-
discrimination. Employees are prohibited from discriminating or insulting
the clan, gender, religion, or physical disability of other employees. We have
also strictly complied with the provisions of the PRC Labor Law and Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance to protect employees’ rights and interests, and
provide competitive remuneration and benefits to employees, also fostering
work-life balance among employees through diverse activities.

Talents Acquisition

With a good quality, stable and capable team, the Group continues to make
remarkable achievement in the industry and owns predominant leading
products. To provide strong human resources support for the sustainable
development of the Company, we have formulated the “Human Resources
Management Procedures” to properly regulate the affairs of the Company
regarding recruitment, remuneration, dismissal and promotion. In the
recruitment process, only the candidates’ ability and qualification are our
most important assessment factors while other factors such as gender and
age will not be considered in the assessment criteria. All applicants need to
undergo a series of rigorous selection process, including written examination
of professional skills, comprehensive ability tests and supervisor interview and
so on before they are officially hired. The Group will strictly keep confidential
all applicants’ information. We strictly comply with the requirements of
labour laws and regulations and have a zero-tolerance policy towards the
use of child labour in our operation. In the recruitment process, applicants’
identity and particulars, including age, are strictly verified to ensure that
all work performed on our behalf is in compliance with all relevant labor
laws and regulations. During the reporting period, no incidence of and risks
associated with child, forced or illegal labour to which the Group is aware of
have emerged.
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Developing People

It is one of PAX's important tasks to provide employees with professional and
personal development opportunities, and to motivate employees and upgrade
their skills to meet the Group’s evolving business needs. Therefore, the
human resources department will review the annual training requirements
with different departments every year. We have a “Training Management
Procedures” in place to enhance the effectiveness of staff training. The
trainings of the Company can be broadly divided into three categories: new
staff training, internal training and external training. For new staff training,
the human resources department will explain the Company’s business
background, corporate culture and management system etc., coupled
with technical trainings for specific positions provided by employees’ own
departments. The main purpose of internal training and external training
is to enrich the professional knowledge of the staff and enhance their
comprehensive competence. Upon completion of the trainings, participants
are required to submit a training satisfaction questionnaire or training report
so that the relevant departments can continuously improve the training
contents. In 2016, the average training hours by gender were 18.5 hours
for male and 17.1 hours for female, and that by employment type were 4.6
hours for management, and 18.6 hours for technical staff.

Health and Safety

We make our best endeavor to create a safe and healthy workplace for
our employees by regularly cleaning the office including the floors, doors,
windows, washrooms, conference rooms, balconies and air conditioners. In
addition, we provide annual physical checkup and maintain additional group
medical insurance for employees. The coverage of this insurance includes,
subject to an inspection fee of not more than RMB500, provision of medical
insurance for 90% of the out-patient fees to staff to reduce their medical
expenses. During the reporting period, we did not have any cases of work-
related injury or death.

Remunerations and Benefits

We ensure that our remuneration package is comprehensive and attractive,
with employees’ remuneration being monthly fixed income plus annual
performance bonus. Some employees are granted share options to reward
their contribution in accordance with the Company’s Share Option Scheme.
We strictly comply with relevant national or local labor laws and regulations
in the PRC to provide staff with welfare protection. In addition, the “Staff
Code” contains detailed information on benefits to which employees are
entitled, mainly including social insurance (pension, unemployment, medical
treatment, work-related injuries), housing provident fund, medical allowance,
accident relief fund, paid leave, paid sick leave, work-related injury leave,
long-term sick leave, bereavement leave, marriage leave and compensation
leave stipulated by the state. In principle, we pursue a work system of 8 hours
per day and 40 hours per week with 1.5 hours break at noon. Work hours
and rest breaks are subject to change based on different regions and business
requirements. We respect employees’ work-rest pattern and employees
are encouraged to efficiently complete their work within their daily 8-hour
working time, and overtime work is generally not encouraged. A stringent
overtime system is also implemented to preclude any forced labour. Under
the system, employees must obtain approval from their respective department
heads and also the human resources department to ensure that employees
shall only engage overtime work as necessitated by work and have sufficient
time to rest.
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Pursuant to “Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees”,
we care much about the interests and needs of female employees, and
implement a work system of short working hours for lactation period. Female
employees who feed babies younger than 1 year old are provided with the
flexibility to choose between going to work an hour later, getting off work
an hour earlier, or 30 minutes later to work and 30 minutes earlier to get off
work. We also value the career development of female employees. Female
employees account for approximately 23% of the staff and have equal
promotion opportunities as male employees.

Moreover, we emphasize the physical and mental development of employees.
During the reporting period, we held a total of more than 200 activities of
different themes such as monthly birthday parties, sports activities (including
basketball, badminton, football and running) as well as annual party to enable
employees to relieve stress, maintain work-life balance, enhance productivity
and at the same time cultivate team spirit and promote employees’ sense of
belonging to the Company.

Culture of Integrity

We emphasize on business ethics. All business activities within the Group are
carried out in good faith and in an ethical and lawful manner. Any forms of
corruption, extortion, fraud, bribery, false declaration, money laundering or
counterfeiting are prohibited. Our “Staff Code” clearly sets out all the rules
that employees are required to comply with. Employees shall promptly report
to their department heads if they are likely to accept gifts from customers.

SUPPLY CHAIN AND BUSINESS PARTNERS

While the Group adopts the best environmental and social practices during
its operation, it also hopes that its business partners can uphold honesty
and treat their employees fairly, protect the environment and abide by the
disciplinary code. During the reporting period, the supply chain network
comprised of 176 suppliers. The products and services provided by our supply
chain cover raw materials, parts and components and outsourcing processing
plants and so on. We firmly believe that the quality of our products and
services as well as our reputation will be influenced by the ways we work
with each other. Therefore, we strive to establish close and long-term
cooperation relationships with business partners. In the “Suppliers’ Quality
Agreement” between us and our suppliers, we specify our basic requirements
for our suppliers in various aspects including occupational health and
safety, employee rights protection and corporate social responsibility, which
have a positive impact on the supply chain and promote the harmonious
development of the society.
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In terms of the environment, we have formulated the “Control Measures
for Environmental Management Substances” to ensure that all materials,
parts (such as those used for production of batteries and IC cards), products,
production and services are in compliance with European Union standards
such as the “Restriction Directive for Hazardous Substances” and the “Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directive” as well as the “Measures for
Administration of the Pollution Control of Electronic Information Products”
promulgated in China. In the meantime, suppliers are required to sign
the “Undertakings, Guarantees and Statements on Non-use of Harmful
Substances”, which prohibits suppliers from using substances harmful to
the environment and human body during the production of electronic
information products. For the product packaging materials, all product
packaging materials we purchased have passed the “Technical Standards for
Pollution-free Substances in Environmental Management”, which proves that
the packaging materials do not contain substances that are harmful to the
environment. In addition, the two outsourcing processing plants we are using
have obtained the “National Industrial Products Production Permit” from the
General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine
of PRC to ensure the quality safety of products. One of the outsourcing
processing plants which has long-term relationship with us has even obtained
the ISO 14001: 2004 environmental management system certification in
recognition of its world-class environmental protection.

We have established the comprehensive “Management Measures for
Suppliers” and properly manage the selection procedures for new suppliers,
conduct daily management and evaluation and periodic on-site inspection
of suppliers, so as to ensure that suppliers are capable of timely providing
products and services with appropriate quality, quantity, prices and guarantee
product quality from the source. Our supplier evaluation system makes
comprehensive assessments of suppliers according to their costs, delivery
time, cooperativeness, quality control, R&D capabilities, services and so on.
Qualified suppliers will be listed in the “List of Qualified Suppliers”. We will
only employ registered suppliers in the “List of Qualified Suppliers”, and carry
out regular on-site evaluation and monitoring of suppliers according to the
“Annual Plan for Regular On-site Evaluation of Suppliers”.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY AND INNOVATION

With the mission of “Becoming a Leading Global Player”, we endeavor
to adhere to quality excellence and safety standards and incorporate the
concept of sustainable development into product design. We also strive to
achieve innovation and continuously optimize E-payment Terminals products
in the rapidly changing payment industry in order to bring convenience to the
society.

Research Results

We concentrate our resources on R&D. Our internal R&D team has
outstanding R&D capabilities and is relentlessly upgrading technology and
product quality. All of our products are self-developed, with abundant variety
to meet the changing needs in the market. As at 31 December 2016, we own
more than 70 patents for product technologies and more than 800 domestic
and international certifications, such as Paywave and MasterCard Contactless
and so on.

The Company’s main products are set out in the section of “Some of Our
Products” in the annual report.
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Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

We absolutely refrain from infringing other copyrights. Over the years, all of
our products have been developed by our internal R&D team to cope with
market demand. For software R&D in particular, we will apply to the National
Copyright Administration of China for patent approval according to the
“Regulation for the Protection of Computer Software” and the “Measures for
Computer Software Copyright Registration”, and will obtain the “Registration
Certificate for Computer Software Copyright” to protect the intellectual
properties of the Company from being embezzled.

Examples of patents and copyrights obtained by us during the reporting
period are as follows:

Names of Patents

Smart payment terminal (A920)
Mobile payment terminal (D220)
Cable POS terminal (Q80)

Names of Software Copyrights

PAX embedded power management system software V1.0.0

PAX SOC peripheral online debugging tool software V1.1

PAX POS terminal firmware upgrading system software V1.0.0

PAX WinCom multi-functional communication testing system software V1.40
PAX EASYGO application development platform software V1.00.00

PAX POS terminal printing library system software V1.00.00

PAX EUI interface display library system software V1.00.00

PAX monitor virtual machine system software V1.0.0

PAX state secret algorithm library system software V1.0.0

PAX cross-platform virtual machine system software V1.0.0

PAX terminal integrated retail application software V1.0.0

PAX POS terminal RKI remote gold key download system software V1.0.0
PAX POS terminal RKI remote gold Key repairing tool software V1.0.0

PAX POS terminal serial port simulation system communication tool software

Safety and Quality Control

As a responsible corporate citizen, we have always strictly complied with
applicable laws and regulations in producing our products. Pax Technology
(Shenzhen) has even obtained the I1SO 9001: 2008 international quality
management system certification. We have also established a comprehensive
set of quality management rules (including the “Quality Manual” and the
“Standard for Machine Inspection of Finished Products”) according to the ISO
9001 international standards.
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Pursuant to relevant PRC regulations (such as the “Implementation Rules for
Mandatory Product Certification of Telecommunication Terminal Equipment”
(CNCA-C16-01: 2014)), some of our wireless E-payment Terminals products
fall within the category of national mandatory certification products
which must meet different product standards and technical requirements
in China, such as “Information Technology Requirement — Safety — Part
1: General Requirements” (GB4943.1-2011), “Limits and Measurement
Methods of Electromagnetic Compatibility for 900/1800MHz TDMA Digital
Cellular Telecommunications System - Part 1: Mobile Station and Ancillary
Equipment” (GB/T22450.1-2008), “Requirements and Measurement
Methods of Electromagnetic Compatibility for 2GHz WCDMA Digital Cellular
Mobile Telecommunications System - Part 1: User Equipment and Ancillary
Equipment” (YD/T1595.1-2012), so as to obtain the “Certificate for China
Compulsory Product Certification” (“3C Certification”) from China Quality
Certification Centre as a product safety assurance.

In order to further ensure that the system safety protection mechanism for
our payment terminal products can withstand various attacks and to protect
sensitive client information, a series of our payment terminal products have
strictly complied with the standards of “PIN Transaction Security” and
successfully passed the tests conducted by the Payment Card Industry Security
Standard Council and was recognized by it. In the meantime, our products
for domestic sale in China have also passed the “Safety Certificate for
UnionPay Card Acceptance Terminal Product” issued by China UnionPay and
the “Certificate of the Commercial Password Products” issued by the Office
of the State Commercial Cryptography Administration, which demonstrates
our dedication to product safety and quality through our continuous effort to
obtain certifications and pass stringent tests for our products before market
launch.

We pay attention to the safety issue relating to the customers’ usage of our
electronic products. As such, we provide product manual which guides users
about the machine set-up, product usage and some points to note about
using lithium battery.

With regard to placing advertisements of our products and services, our
policy is to promote our business in strict compliance with relevant applicable
laws and regulations including Advertisements Law of the PRC to root out
inappropriate claims in our advertisement in protection of the legitimate
rights and interests of consumers.

Our quality policy is “full-force participation, scientific management, people
orientation and customer satisfaction”. We follow the principle of “quality
first, customer first”, and reinforce the people-oriented management to fully
release the potential of staff. Supported by a sound system, we continue to
steadily provide customers with satisfactory products and services. We will set
a practicable quality goal every year. In 2016, our overall goal is to maintain
95% or more customer satisfaction, through the systematic and active
participation of all departments.
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Every year, we conduct regular on-site inspection activities for large
customers, communicate with their leaders and terminal managers and
understand their use of our machines. We pay special attention to and
cherish the opinions and suggestions provided by our customers. Take one of
our large banking customers as an example, we visited and conducted on-site
inspections for 90 branches of such customer during this year. Services we
provided during such inspections include on-site machine repairs, provision of
technical trainings for terminal managers and customer visits. We also highly
value the collection of problems on-site and the handling of such problems,
which help us improve our products and services.

In order to understand customer satisfaction with our products and services,
we have formulated a “Customer Satisfaction Survey”, and we make sample
surveys on key customers every year. We also cherish our customers’ valuable
recommendations, which will keep on driving us towards further product
quality and after-sales services enhancement.

After-sales Service Management

Through the establishment of a series of quality control systems for after-
sales services, including the “Management Manual for the After-sales Service
Department”, the “Management Procedures for Customer Satisfaction”
and the “Management Procedures for Customer Complaints”, we provide
customers with professional, timely and standardized after-sales service
to win the trust of customers, and to ensure that our products can meet
customers’ expectations.

We have printed contact information including hotline, QQ Mail, WeChat
and e-mail on all products for customer inquiries. We have an experienced
after-sales service team who will handle customer complaints according to
the “Management Procedures for Customer Complaints”. For customer
complaints, our policy is that customer problems must be resolved within
24 hours, and complaint cases accepted will be recorded in the quality
control systems and followed up and handled by the after-sales service team.
Meanwhile, the team will identify the reasons with the relevant responsible
departments and develop preventive measures. If there is no complaint of the
same type and the improvement measures have been completed one month
later, the team will close the complaint case.

GREEN OPERATION

Although our business does not involve production, the development, sales
and related services of operational E-payment Terminals products will still
have certain impacts on the environment. In this regard, the Group actively
assumes its responsibility to protect the environment. We endeavor to reduce
possible impacts of our operation on the environment and comply with
the requirements of national or local environmental regulations in the PRC.
Through formulating the "ESG Policy”, the Group implements the policy of
"active integration of ESG aspects into the operation of our business”. We
continue to improve our measures on environmental management, reduce
the consumption of resources, reduce the production of wastes, and ensure
that the wastes are disposed in a safe and responsible manner. Meanwhile,
we enhance our performance in environmental protection through education
and training of our employees, and will continue to monitor and analyze the
progress and achievements of environmental protection.
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Wastes Disposal

As the Group's businesses do not involve production lines, major wastes
are terminal machines and tools which have been used by the customers
and need to be disposed of. Customers are generally advised to scrap the
whole machines which have been used for more than three years. During
the reporting period, a total of 45,028 terminals have been scrapped on
behalf of the customers. Most of them come from the Mainland China.
To effectively regulate the process of scrapping, recycling and destroying
machines, we have developed the “System for Scrapping and Destroying
Machinery”. Scrapped machines which have been recycled will be delivered
to government-recognized recycling companies to carry out electronic waste
recycling and decomposition, in order to reduce the impact of e-waste on the
environment.

Use of Resources and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Based on the business characteristics of the Group, we summed up the main
aspect involving the use of resources which include paper, electricity and
water consumed by office buildings.

In recent years, we have strengthened the concept of environmentally-
friendly office, including promotion of paperless office, placing “save paper”
notice, using light emitting diode (LED) lighting, wastes classification,
encouraging staff to reduce business travels by video conferencing, keeping
the air conditioner at 25 degrees celsius, selecting energy-saving appliances
and gradually replacing ordinary taps with sensor taps and so on in a bid to
reduce the use of resources as well as greenhouse gas emissions. The Group
has noted that the financial reports printed every year consume a certain
amount of ink and paper. Therefore, we implement the use of biodegradable
soy ink to replace traditional oil ink since this year. Meanwhile, in order to
support the conservation of forest resources and protect the ecosystems,
we use paper certified by the Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC"), which
proves that the paper comes from FSC-managed forests and FSC-regulated
production and sales chains.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

This year, our business development received recognition from various
parties, including the government and the industry sector. We have been
awarded the certificate of “Top 100 Software Income Enterprises in Shenzhen
for 2015" and included in the “List of Through Train Service Enterprises”
published by the General Office of the People’s Government of Shenzhen.
This service was launched by the People’s Government of Shenzhen to
promote the development of enterprises rooted in Shenzhen. Next year, the
Group will benefit from this service in strengthening our cooperation and
effective communication with the government.

In addition, PAX was named as one of the most competitive companies in
the List of Asia’s 200 Best Under A Billion in “Forbes”. Also, PAX was voted
as one of the “Asia’s Most Honored Companies” by global investors in
“2016 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team” ranking initiated by “Institutional
Investor”, an international financial magazine, which is one of the highest
honors recognized in the industry.
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PAX was also granted various awards with excellent performance and
professionalism, including:

2016 All-Asia (ex-Japan) Executive Team
One of Asia’s Most Honored Companies
Asia’s Best Website (Technology and Hardware), Second Place (Overall)

Moreover, PAX honoured as the “Asia’s Outstanding Company on Corporate
Governance” in the 11th “Asia Excellence Recognition Awards” organized by
"“Corporate Governance Asia”.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group undertakes social responsibilities
actively, grows together with the community, and spares no efforts to
contribute to society with particular attention to environmental protection.

During this year, we participated in the Green Power Hike organized by
Green Power to contribute some efforts to environmental protection. Looking
forward, we will actively seek opportunities to contribute to society in
different ways and help the communities in need.

The Group's ESG Policy encourages and supports employees to volunteer
their time to help less advantaged people in the community and employees
are encouraged to join volunteer work from time to time.

OUTLOOK

Over the years, by adhering to the mission of “Becoming a Leading Global
Player” and in line with the principles of “full-force participation, scientific
management, people orientation and customer satisfaction”, PAX has
continued to pursue business innovations to satisfy the demand of customers
in various industries. According to the Nilson Report released in September
2016, approximately 10% of the global shipping volume of E-payment
Terminals in 2015 came from PAX. Nevertheless, “Becoming a Leading Global
Player” represents not only the Group's vision on the principal business, but
also symbolizes our attitude towards environmental and social affairs.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to strive to incorporate the ESG
considerations into its business operations and the decision-making process,
and also strive to make contributions to environment and society in pursuance
of sustainable development at all levels.

We hope to take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders and other stakeholders for their long-term support for and
confidence in the Group. Valuable input of all sorts will form the basis of our
development strategies for sustainability, enable us to take responsive actions
to the expectations and needs of stakeholders, create long-term value for
them and fulfill corporate social responsibilities with dedicated efforts.
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the Group
is principally engaged in the development and sales of E-payment Terminals
products and the provision of payment solutions services and maintenance
services.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading Asian E-payment Terminals solutions provider and
one of the most active global players. The Group was founded in 2000 and
the Company went listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December
2010. The strategy of PAX is to focus on three key particular customer groups
(Unionpay Merchant Services, Financial Institutions and Operators) by offering
various integrated payment solutions services.

Further details of the business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016, details of proposed dividends and discussion on the Group's
future business development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
section on pages 9 to 11, and Management Discussion and Analysis section
on pages 12 to 27. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis section on pages 12 to 27 and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group values the importance of protecting the environment in the
process of operation. As the Group’s businesses do not involve production
lines, major wastes are terminal machines and tools which have been used
by the customers which need to be disposed of. The waste machines and
tools will be transferred to government-recognized recycling companies for
undergoing electronic waste recycling and decomposition, so as to mitigate
the adverse impact of electronic wastes on the environment. In recent years,
we also strengthened green office concept by promoting paperless office,
using LED light pipes, classifying wastes, encouraging employees to hold
video conferences to reduce business trips and selecting energy-saving electric
appliances and gradually adopting inductive faucets, so as to reduce energy
consumption.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to upholding high standard of integrity in all aspects
of business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within various business units at all levels of the
Group. During the year, there has been no violation or breach of relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Company.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasizes on maintaining a good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent talents
through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with training
opportunities, good career development prospect and growth opportunities.
From time to time, we offer to our employees remuneration packages that
are comprehensive and attractive. Some employees are granted options under
the Company’s Share Option Scheme in recognition of their contribution. We
also value our employee’s physical and mental development. Diverse events
and activities are organized for the employees for soothing pressure and
fostering work-life balance.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and services
to the best of our ability and we cherish comments and suggestions of our
customers. During the year, the Group maintained effective communications
with the customers through on-site customer visits and customer satisfaction
survey with key customers, and we believe that our customers’ feedback
would help us to identify areas of improvement and advance us to achieve
excellence.

Suppliers

We strongly believe that maintaining good relationship with suppliers is
essential to the Group's business performance and growth because suppliers
can have direct influence over the quality of the products and services and
customer satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for Suppliers”
in respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality testing methods and
overall appraisal and evaluation system on potential and existing suppliers
and their products and performance. We are committed to establishing a close
and long-term cooperation relationship with business partners.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 75.
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DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK$0.04 per ordinary share amounting to
approximately HK$44.72 million was paid to the shareholders of the
Company during the year.

The Board has recommended a payment final dividend of HK$0.04 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (year ended 31
December 2015: HK$0.02 per ordinary share) to shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Monday, 15 May 2017, subject to the approval
of shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company which will be held on Tuesday, 25 April 2017, and if
passed, the final dividend will be paid to the shareholders of the Company
on Monday, 29 May 2017. For determining the entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 11 May 2017 to Monday, 15 May 2017, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 10 May 2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.04
ordinary share (six months ended 30 June 2015: HK$0.02 per ordinary
share), the total dividend per ordinary share for the year was HK$0.08 (2015:
HK$0.04 per ordinary share).

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer given
there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement of the
shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM will be Tuesday,
18 April, 2017. All transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 18 April 2017.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in notes
22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted by a resolution of the
Board on 1 December 2010 (the “Scheme”) for the issuance of in aggregate
of no more than 100,000,000 shares (representing 10% in the nominal
amount of the aggregate of shares in issue on 20 December 2010 (the Listing
Date of the Company) (subject to the terms of the Scheme and the relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules).

As at the end of 2016, the entire number of share options have been granted
to the eligible participants of the Scheme and no further shares is available
for issue in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme.

Eligible participants of the Scheme would be any person or an entity
belonging to any of Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and employees of the
Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoters or service providers of any member of the Group who, the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward the relevant participants who have
contributed to the Group and to give incentives thereto working towards
enhancing the value of the Group for the benefit of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of share options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1.0% of the number of the shares of the
Company in issue.

The Scheme was effective from 1 December 2010 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
thereform.

The exercise price for the Options shall be determined by the Board and must
be not lower than the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant (which must be a
business day);

(2)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3)  the nominal value of the Shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option was granted and
a total of 5,860,000 share options, which were part of the share options
granted to the employees on 28 May 2014, were exercised, and the weighted
average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised was HK$7.16 per share. The particulars of the
share options under the Scheme are as follows:
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MOVEMENTS IN THE SHARE OPTIONS OF THE ZAARWERESE
COMPANY

Number of Number of
Outstanding Outstanding
Share Options Share Options
held as at held as at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
R-B-X% R-B-XR%
-B-A Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled +=A=+-H
Exercised iz during  duringthe  duringthe  during the iz
Name Date of grant price R ATHE the year year year year MR
#E RiBH TRE BREHE FRRL ERfTH EREH FREE  BREZA
(HKS)
(%)
Directors
2
Nie Guoming 22 June 2012* 1.230 - - - - - -
EHHA et Sy ey e =
Lu Jie 22 June 2012* 1230 - - - - - -
EA —E-CERA-toRe
Li Weniin 22 June 2012* 1230 - - - - - -
Y6 ZE-ZF AZtzB*
Total for Directors - - - - - -
RO
Employees
&8
(In qggregate) 22 June 2012* 1.230 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
(&31) “E-CZERAZfCAx
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 18,134,000 - (5,860,000) - - 12,274,000
() “Z-mERAZt/B*
Total for Employees 24,134,000 - (5,860,000) - - 18,274,000
[EEE:
Consultants
B
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 1,580,000 - - - - 1,580,000
() —Z-mERA-t/B*
Total for Consultants 1,580,000 - - - - 1,580,000
ik
Total 25,714,000 - (5,860,000) - - 19,854,000
&3

* The share options will be vested to the grantees, among which 30% of the share = ERESEBARA ER0%BERENZLEBHE

options would be vested on the date of grant, a further 30% of the share options B B30%BRESHNRERS—BFER  H&
be vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining 40% of 40% BRESHREOEMBFERE - ZSBREN
the share options will be vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant. The AMEARRE B RE -

validity period of these share options shall be 5 years from the date of grant.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had reserves available for distribution
as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)
amounting to HK$43,073,000 (2015: HK$25,512,000). However, the
Company's share premium account, in the amount of HK$1,299,524,000
(2015: HK$1,323,439,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 160.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 10,000,000
ordinary shares for a total consideration of approximately HK$52,547,000 on
the Stock Exchange as follows:

a2 ke
BREGREE-NN\—FAREAIER])FE - AR
RZE—RNE+ZA=+—HHE A#43,073,000%
TREAHEDIR(ZE—RF : HK$25,512,000) © &
- ARB A A RAE A XD IREG G B AR
1,299,524,0008 7. (= F — F 4 : 1,323,439,0007%
TO) B FE ©

BEARE

ARBWARAALERBELBRENGRE
B FREED INEA B SR ARG o

TFEMBHRE

REBRBERAVRFEENEERM B RS,
NE160E o

BE - HEERES

RER - ARABIRERFERA 10,000,000 B L@
fi% - AR (B4 A 52,547,0008 7 - HIEMT

Consideration per share

BRRE Total

No. of shares Highest Lowest Consideration

repurchased HK$ HK$ paid

2iEE 55 Ri& g1t

Date of Repurchase BE A BB EE BT BT BRE
14 September 2016 —E-RENATIA 5,000,000 5.91 5.78 29,276,000
24 November 2016 “E-RE+—-AZTWmA 5,000,000 4.77 4.46 23,271,000
Total st 10,000,000 52,547,000

The Board believes that the share repurchases are in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders and would lead to an enhancement of the
net assets value per share and/or earnings per share of the Company. The
above repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of
the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly
and the balance of consideration was charged against the share premium
account.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s shares during the year.

BERRMEARAT

EZERA BRONEENTAARRRERR Z&
EHE YARBARRZEREEFEN XE
K&F - EMEBERHEEHE  BARBMNEET
AR IRZFRDWEEARRD LR THRED
AEABRMDRER o

BR ECATIREEE SN - RER - AR RS E AN E
NEMEBE HEXBRADBEMAND
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

LU Jie

LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws 84 and 85, one-third of the Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing,
from 23 May 2016 for Mr. Lu Jie and 20 December 2016 for Mr. Nie
Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the service contract.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management are set
out on pages 6 to 8.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and officers
of the Group is currently and was in force throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover for the Directors and officers of the
Group to indemnify the Directors and officers of the Group against all losses
or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from or incidental to execution of
duties of his/her offices.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the continuing connected transactions and related party
transactions are respectively set out on pages 63 to 65 and 152 to 154.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group'’s business to which the Company, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a Director
and the Director’s connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group, or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of each Director
and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”) in the
Company'’s shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

EENaNER

SERERHNAB AR FBEIAENE63E65
BREIS2E 1548 -

BREXHEEEN  BERAREEBILUALR
A ERRAMBARSAMERATRERTHLA
FEZERE=HEERERARMERAFEAREMR
FRIFAEARRNAFENREBEARS - L5
HEH o

EENHRFEBOER

RER BEEFIAQFTIERRAWEZBEM
BEALSETMEAREXGRFAAERFOX
% EAEEFEAEMNEER -

EERTHRARIRKRS - HBERORE
ZHERRAR

RZB-—RF+-_A=1+—H JBEERARQFTR
BE(THRER DRARAREABEE(EERE
RS G (T8 5 RS RG] ]) S XV #E) AR R A
B (Thetn ) ~ AnEEERD REST - BECL
ARRBIREE 7 R G5 352 fF B/ B
FRBELEMBITAEBETERXZNTLETR([F
ETAHEHEARBRBEERARAIMARRA A
([Bs2pr ) MR FORRINT -

ARFEREEI1I0ETHERER

Approximate
Interest Total percentage of
Name of Director Capacity in Shares interests” shareholding*
REZBA
EEpg BkRat Kb s BRARO BoL*
Nie Guoming (Chairman) Beneficial owner 4,200,000 4,200,000(L) 0.38%
EEH(TE) EafAA
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 8,870,000 8,870,000(L) 0.80%
EN(TTB4E%) EafAA
Li Wenjin Beneficial owner 2,890,000 2,890,000 (L) 0.26%
FXE EafAA
Notes: Vi
() Theletter “L" denotes a long position in Shares. 0 L ZRBOEITFA -
* The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the ~ « BRLTEBARRAR-ZE—R"F+-A=+—HE%

Company as at 31 December 2016 which was 1,107,874,000 ordinary shares.

TR a8 (BN1,107,874,0000 L% ) 5+& -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders (not being a Director or the Chief Executive) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO are as follow:

FERRRRD REER GRS R K
B

BARRREE 7 NP E RO 336 (RFEAN B
PRBER RZBE-—RET+ZA=+—H FERR
(MIFEFRITHRABE) R AR R R H AR AR
0~ BRI REFTAEANER AR |

Approximate
Total number percentage of

Class of Shares shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity of securities (Note 1) (Note 2)
BRRER 5% Bt bl BROEEH BAZEREIH
(Biet1) (Kfst2)
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary 364,000,000 (L) 32.86%
(“Hi Sun”) LEEUN 1
BBRE(FE)ERAT (5B )
Baillie Gifford &Co Investment manager Ordinary 89,588,000 (L) 8.09%
BELE gl
FMR LLC Investment manager Ordinary ~ 79,419,461(L) 717%
RELE Limik
Notes: Bt -
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares. 1. F8 (L] RIAROETE -

2. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 which was 1,107,874,000 ordinary shares.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into the certain
continuing connected transactions and details of these continuing connected
transactions are set out below in accordance with the Listing Rules:

Framework agreements with Hi Sun

Hi Sun is a substantial shareholder interested in 32.86% of the Company’s
issued share capital and therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, transactions between the Company and Hi Sun
constitute connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

i. Supply of E-payment Terminals Products

On 31 December 2015, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “E-payment Terminals Products Framework
Agreement”) with Hi Sun, pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell
and Hi Sun (together with its subsidiaries) (the “Hi Sun Group”) agreed
to purchase the electronic funds transfer point-of-sale products (the
“E-payment Terminals Products”) for the mobile and other payment
solutions, services and/or platforms of the Hi Sun Group. The term of
the E-payment Terminals Products Framework Agreement commenced
on 22 January 2016, the date on which the relevant approval was
obtained at its special general meeting, and will expire on 31 December
2018.

The Board considered that the entering into of the E-Payment Terminals
Products Framework Agreement offered considerable potential for
expanding the Group's market share.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the sale and purchase of
E-payment Terminals products under the E-payment Terminals Products
Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 were set at HK$300,000,000, HK$350,000,000 and
HK$400,000,000 respectively and the aggregate contract value for the
sale and purchase of E-Payment Terminals Products for the year ended
31 December 2016 was HK$157,820,000.

During the year, the Group has followed the internal control measures
and policies of the Group in determining the prices and terms of the
sale of E-payment Terminals Products to Hi Sun Group and all sales
to Hi Sun Group under the E-Payment Terminals Products Framework
Agreement were no less favourable than the terms which were offered
to independent third parties for products of comparable quality,
quantity and specifications. The Company has complied with the
reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BHEXS

RBE-F—AF+-AS+—BILEE  ARE
TETRERERS  RELTRA HESEDE
R SHBBIIDT -

BA S5 AT AR R 1
BEAKAERRRIEHITRA32.86% EENETER
RoHBELETRA HARAREMNBEAL-
I AARESENRZRIE EWRAATERAR
AIMBAER 5 °

i. HEBFZMRBER
RZE-—RE+_A=+—0 K26HEZH
S —ERGH(ETINRBERIERD
B ARERELEMSECGERER
Brr R aGEE)REBRERRSEG
SEMBHREMTNBEREAIR  RER/
TeMETERHEEHEM(EFINTRIBE
)  EFXMNRBEERERBHEHRA=S
—RNEF-AZ+ZB(AESARARBIBRER
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BR-ZE—N\F+_A=1+—HE®R

EXeRR JUETXMNRRERERZ
REAAEENTHNBHRAEANES -
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—E-RF+-AZ+-HLFEEEETY
HERmEMRBHALEMES £A157,820,0008
5T o
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ii.

64

Purchase of Chips

On 31 December 2013, the Company and Hi Sun entered into a
framework agreement (the “2013 Chips Framework Agreement”) in
relation to the sale by Hi Sun Group and purchase by the Group of the
mag-stripe card security decoder chips (the “Security Decoder Chips”),
the term of which commenced on 1 January 2014 and expired on
31 December 2016. The annual caps of the total contract value for
the sale and purchase of the Security Decoder Chips under the 2013
Chips Framework Agreement for each of the financial years ended
31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 were set at HK$50,000,000,
HK$60,000,000 and HK$65,000,000 respectively and the aggregate
contract value for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2014,
2015 and 2016 were approximately HK$45,390,000, HK$45,702,000
and HK$37,120,000 respectively.

In view of the Group's continuous demand for (i) the Security Decoder
Chips supplied by Hi Sun Group under the 2013 Chips Framework
Agreement; (ii) the security micro controller unit chips; and (iii) the
contactless reader chips (collectively the “Chips”) after the expiry of the
term of the 2013 Chips Framework Agreement for Purchase of Chips,
the Company and Hi Sun entered into another framework agreement
on 30 December 2016 (the “2017 Chips Framework Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase and Hi Sun Group
agreed to sell the Chips for a term of three years commencing on 1
January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019.

The Board considered that the entering into of the 2017 Chips
Framework Agreement ensured continuous and stable supply of the
Chips for production of the Group’s E-Payment Terminals related
products and lower the production cost by saving the operational cost
in sourcing suitable market suppliers, as the Hi Sun Group supplied
the Chips which were fit for production needs of the Group and with
specifications not commonly supplied by other market suppliers.

The term of the 2017 Framework Agreement commenced on 1 January
2017 and will expire on 31 December 2019. The annual caps of the
total contract value for the transactions contemplated under the 2017
Chips Framework Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2017, 2018 and 2019 were set at HK$65,000,000, HK$70,000,000
and HK$75,000,000 respectively.

During the year, the prices payable for the purchase of the Security
Decoder Chips under the 2013 Chips Framework Agreement were
determined by making reference to the prices of other products sold
by Hi Sun Group and the prices of similar products sold by third party
suppliers in the industry. The Company has also complied with the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements and are
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Please also refer to note 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board, including the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that, these
transactions entered into by the Company were:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules and a copy of this letter has been provided to the Stock
Exchange.

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the year was
disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company and Hi
Sun on 1 December 2010 (“Deed of Non-Competition”).

Hi Sun has signed an annual declaration of compliance with the Deed of Non-
competition confirming its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
in the Deed of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors of
the Company have reviewed the abovementioned undertakings and consider
that Hi Sun has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016. Mr. Li Wenjin, an executive Director
of the Company, is also an executive director of Hi Sun and certain of its
subsidiaries.
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Should any conflicts of interest or potential conflict of interest arise between
the Group and Hi Sun Group in any particular transaction, any common
directors of the two groups and any Director who is interested in the relevant
transaction(s) will be required to abstain from voting on the relevant Board
resolutions. Based on the above, none of the Directors have any interest in
any competing business with the Hi Sun Group that is discloseable under Rule
8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31 December
2016 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are
respectively as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 22.4
— five largest suppliers combined 48.2
Sales

— the largest customer 18.2
— five largest customers combined 454

The total sales, including the sales of electronic payment products,
attributable to a subsidiary of Hi Sun, one of the Group's five largest
customers for the year, amounted to approximately HK$133.8 million
(representing approximately 4.6% of the total sales amount). Hi Sun is the
controlling shareholder of the Company holding approximately 32.86% of
its issued share capital and Mr. Li Wenjin, concurrently an executive Director
of the Company and Hi Sun, was interested in approximately 0.23% of the
issued share capital of Hi Sun as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’'s equity interest) had an interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme set up by the Group or the Company
in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. Under the scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5%
of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose
to make additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are
also calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HK$1,500 (the “Mandatory Contributions”). The employees are entitled to
100% of the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at
the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the Group
is required to contribute in favour of the employees in the PRC an amount
of approximately 7% to 20% of their basic wages to certain retirement
benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained at all times during the year sufficient public float as prescribed by
the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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Iindependent Auditor’s Report
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AN INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of PAX Global Technology Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 159,
which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Impairment of receivables

. Provision for inventories

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of receivables

Refer to Note 4(c) (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 19
(trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures

As at 31 December 2016, gross trade receivables of the Group amounted to
HK$1,311.1 million, which accounted for approximately 30% of the Group’s
total assets. The provision for impairment of trade receivables amounted to
HK$4.1 million, all of which was attributable to customers located in China.

Management performed periodic credit monitoring, which included the
review of customers’ credit worthiness, collection of outstanding balances
and individual credit terms. If there is indicator that the receivables are
impaired, management would make specific provision against individual
balances with reference to the recoverable amount.
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We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and the
estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the recoverable
amounts of trade receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables included:

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures on periodic review on aged
receivables and assessment on recoverability of these receivables;

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on trade
receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices; and

- Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances. Where
settlement had not been received subsequent to the year end for those
unprovided aged receivables beyond the credit period as at year end,
we obtained management’s assessment on the recoverability of these
debts and corroborated explanations with historical settlement pattern
and underlying correspondence with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the collectability of receivables were supportable
by the available evidence.

Provision for inventories

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note
18 (inventories) to the consolidated financial statements for the related
disclosures

The Group held inventories of HK$596.5 million as at 31 December 2016.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV").
The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged
and damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has written back
provision for inventories of HK$18.0 million.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of inventories by
considering the ageing profile, inventory obsolescence and estimated selling
price of individual inventory items.

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based on the estimated
selling price less selling expenses, which requires significant judgements and
assumptions to be made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling products of similar nature
and expectation of future sales based on current market conditions.

Management consistently applies a provisioning methodology for slow
moving inventories based on inventory ageing and makes specific provision
for long aged inventories. Management also conducted periodic review on
inventory obsolescence, including performance of periodic inventory counts
and review of holding period for individual inventory items.
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We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision for inventories
involves significant judgement and various uncertainties as a result of
changing technology, customer demand and competitors actions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on NRV and
obsolescence of inventories included:

- Understood and validated the control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV of the
inventories and conducting periodic review on inventory obsolescence;

- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether there is any
damaged or obsolete inventory;

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile of
individual inventory items by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices;

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of significant inventory
items, obtained through the usage report subsequent to the year
end as a basis to identify inventory obsolescence. Where there are
no subsequent usage of the respective items after the year end,
we discussed with management its assessment on estimated future
utilisation, corroborating explanations with the inventory ageing, sales
orders and marketability of the relevant finished goods by using our
industry knowledge and external market analysis, as appropriate; and

- Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items, by
comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end, against the
carrying values of these individual finished goods. Where there are
no subsequent sales of the respective finished goods after the year
end, we discussed with management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the inventory ageing, sales
orders, historical margins, and current market conditions by using our
industry knowledge and external market analysis, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations of
management in relation to the provision for inventories were supportable by
available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement
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Year ended 31

December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-XE ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i} FET FHETT
Revenue WA 5 2,914,842 2,870,794
Cost of sales HER R 7 (1,652,848)  (1,778,304)
Gross profit ER 1,261,994 1,092,490
Other income Hip A 5 71,593 109,235
Selling expenses HEMY 7 (297,396) (235,715)
Administrative expenses THEMA 7,8 (347,098) (308,037)
Operating profit RERER 689,093 657,973
Finance costs BREAR 9 (10,794) -
Profit before income tax B AT BB AR 678,299 657,973
Income tax expense SRS 1 (74,865) (37,687)
Profit for the year FERF 603,434 620,286
Profit attributable to: SR
Owners of the Company ARAFAA 600,908 620,736
Non-controlling interests RS 2,526 (450)
603,434 620,286
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRERT BRAET
Earnings per share for the profit attributable ~ ZA2QFEFEA
to the owners of the Company: EhaflzgRER
— Basic —H&XK 12(a) 0.539 0.560
— Diluted —#E 12(b) 0.535 0.551

The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

NS G

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t+—-HLEE
2016 2015

S
HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Profit for the year FREF 603,434 620,286
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax Hit2HEEE - MRHE
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss Hgn e BzBa2EE
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBINGTB AT

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries S RREEMEL =58 (126,208) (101,930)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FREHENBLE  NBRHIE 477,226 518,356
Attributable to: FE1E

Owners of the Company AREFEA 475,534 518,801

Non-controlling interests g o 1,692 (445)

477,226 518,356

The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated 5582 & 159 B MK+t ViR A M BBRANEF LS -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mOEEREBX

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E-XE ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i} FET FHETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB KRE 14 67,919 11,480
Leasehold land HELTH 16 186 203
Intangible assets B EE 15 89,392 15,625
Other non-current assets HipIEmBEE 19 38,353 31,400
Deferred income tax assets BEFMEHEE 26 16,794 906
Total non-current assets FRBEEAE 212,644 59,614
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 596,539 562,445
Trade and bills receivables e e 19 1,347,446 1,261,174
Deposits and other receivables e M E M EWRIA 19 68,919 43,719
Restricted cash XRHE 2 20 310 8,935
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFLERS 21 2,207,205 2,144,312
Total current assets REBEEAE 4,220,419 4,020,585
Total assets EEAE 4,433,063 4,080,199
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company & 2 Bl#$ 5 A G R
Share capital %N 22 110,787 111,201
Reserves i 24 3,354,748 2,966,373
3,465,535 3,077,574
Non-controlling interests FIZRER 35,748 13,025
Total equity RERAE 3,501,283 3,090,599

The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

eEEREBXR

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-—H
2016 2015
—E-XE ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt FEx FET
LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities *RBERE
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEEHRAR 26 6,363 2,057
Current liabilities ik B=R i
Trade payables AN 25 662,485 710,529
Other payables and accruals HAth FETBR SR % FE AT 3R IR 25 226,791 231,356
Taxation payable eI 36,141 45,658
Total current liabilities REEEAE 925,417 987,543
Total liabilities Atk 931,780 989,600
Total equity and liabilities EEkEaEan 4,433,063 4,080,199

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 March

2017 and were signed on its behalf.

NIE GUOMING

=B
Director

EF

The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MOERSEER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ENEIN 1
Reserves
i
Share Non-
Share Share Capital option  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity

B BB &%B% BBERSE  NERE  RERA gt FEREE  EGAE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000
Tén  TER  TER TR TER  TER  TEn TEn  TER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BECR-AET-AST-ALEE

Balance at 1 January 2016 RIB-RE-A-Ri0EH 11201 1323439 (#14,978) 11310 (37,009 2017638 2,966,373 13025 3,090,599
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Pof o theyear EE - - - - - BN 6NN 256 6038
Other comprehensive loss Hb2EEE
Exchange differences arsing on ranlation of ~~ AEIENHB A BB RR

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ EEAIE S £ - - - - (12530 - (1530 (834)  (126,208)
Total comprehensive income 2ENESE - - - - (15314 600908 475534 1692 477226
Transaction with owners BEEANRS
Repurchase of the Company's shares BERAAHRED (10000 (51,809) - - - - (51,809) - (52,809)
Share aption scheme Bt

- value of senvices provided -ERERBNEE - - - 3,803 - - 3,803 - 3803

- share options exercised -BfifkiE 586 2789 - - - - 27.8% - 28,480
Divdends paid BfRE - - - - - (6704 (67.047) - (67,047)
Non-controlling interests arising on EHAHELED

business combinations FRiER - - - - - - - 21,031 21,031
Tote transaction with owners BEEAIRSEE Wa  (@391) - 380 - B0 @115 031 (6654
Balance at 31 December 2016 RoE-RETZB=T-BHER 10787 1,299,524 (414,978) 81,1713 (162470) 2551499 3354748 35748 3,501,283

The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated 5582 & 159 B MK+t ViR A M BBRANEF LS -
financial statements.
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Ennsulidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GORBBEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LN N
Reserves
i
Share Non-
Share Share Capital option Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve Tesenve Teserve earnings Total nterests equity
B RbEE  EARE  BRERE  MERE  RERN g HikEs  ER4E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T T T TiET T T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 BECT-DETAST-ALEE
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-A-ANLsH 110,081 1,306,427 (414978) 62,680 64839 1419131 2438099 - 2548180
Comprehensive income ENE
ot o the e £ - - - - - T® 6T 50 E20286
Other comprehensive loss Hb2EEE
Exchange differences arising on translation of - EEEINIBA AT HRK
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ EEHIE R 25 - - - - (101939) - (101.93) 5 (1019%0)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEAE - - - - (10193%) 60736 518801 (45) 518356
Transaction with owners BEEANRS
Share option scheme ERiEts
- value of senvices provided -BRERBHER - - - 14690 - - 14690 . 14,690
- share options exercised -efERRE 1120 17,012 - - - - 17012 - 18132
Dividends pad Bfika - - - - - mny R -
Non-contraling interest arising on EhalEr
busingss combination FERER - - - - - - - 13470 13470
Totaltransaction with owners HEEARSEE 1,120 17,012 - 14690 - 9473 13470 24,063
Balance at 31 December 2015 RIE-RETZA=T-ARLR 111,01 1323439 (414978) 71310 (3709 2017638 2966373 1305 3090599
The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated 582 & 159 BRIt Ji4s A MG HRR N EH IS o

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HOIMERER

Year ended 31

December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-Xf ZT-1F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{oFz3 FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBENBEESRE
Cash generated from operations KEMEFRE 27(a) 356,712 386,095
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREEFEH (62,883) (42,913)
PRC corporate income tax paid BRI CEMEH (33,528) (26,047)
Interest paid BERFE (10,794) -
Net cash generated from operating activities BEEBMEHRLFE 249,507 317,135
Cash flows from investing activities RETFHNRETE
Acquisitions of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired WEHBAT  HkREBEANRS 30 (10,446) (1,363)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEIEE (14,614) (5,248)
Interest received BUF B 15,848 20,675
Prepayments for acquisitions of subsidiaries BB B A RITE( /B - (21,975)
Net cash used in investing activities REGDMAR & FE (9,212) (7,911)
Cash flows from financing activities METHNRERE
Proceeds from issuance of shares in connection AT IRE R 1T
with exercise of share options Fris s 28,480 18,132
Payment for repurchase of the Company's shares BB A BRI 15 81 5% (52,809) -
Dividends paid S AN) (67,047) (22,229)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEBFARS TR (91,376) (4,097)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSESEYNIEINFEE 148,919 305,127
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents ReMAEEBYMNELIEBXR (86,026) (79,544)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#H&REESED 2,144,312 1,918,729
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRBEERBEZEY 21 2,207,205 2,144,312

The notes on pages 82 to 159 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sale (“E-payment Terminals”)
products, provision of payment solutions services and maintenance
services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2010.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
8 March 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

HKFRS 14, “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 “Investment entities: applying the
consolidation exception”

Amendment to HKFRS 11 “Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations”

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure initiative”

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
“Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation”

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
“Agriculture: bearer plants”

Amendment to HKAS 27 "Equity method in
separate financial statements”

Annual improvements 2012-2014
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure initiative”:
The amendments clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on
materiality and aggregation, the presentation of
subtotals, the structure of financial statements
and the disclosure of accounting policies. The key
areas addressed by the changes are materiality,
disaggregation and subtotals, accounting policies
and other comprehensive income from equity
accounted investments. Although the amendments
do not require specific changes, they clarify a
number of presentation issues and highlight that
preparers are permitted to tailor the format and
presentation of the financial statements to their
circumstances and the needs of users. The adoption
of the amendments to HKAS 1 did not have any
impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendment to HKAS 27 "Equity method in
separate financial statements”: The amendment
allows entities to use equity method to account
for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements.
The adoption of the amendments to HKAS 27 does
not have any financial impact to the Company as
it elects to continue accounting for its investments
in subsidiaries at cost in its separate financial
statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

®)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

Annual improvements 2012-2014: The amendments
include changes from the 2012-2014 cycle of the
annual improvements project that affect the below
standards: HKFRS 5, ‘Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations’; HKFRS 7, ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’; HKAS 19, ‘Employee
benefits’; HKAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’. The
adoption of the amendments made in the 2012-
2014 Cycle did not have any financial impact to the
Group as it already complies with the requirements
of the amendments.

Apart from those disclosed above, other new/revised
HKFRSs that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on 1 January 2016 do not have any
impact on the Group.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new standards and amendments to
standards are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2016, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.

° Amendments to HKAS 7, “Statement of cash
flows”

° Amendments to HKAS 12, “Income taxes”

o Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 “Sale
or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture”
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
° HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

° HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

° HKFRS 16, “Leases”

. Amendments to HKFRS 2, “Classification
and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions”

None of these is expected to have a significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial assets
and financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets.

The Group does not expect the new guidance to
have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss
and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement” and have not been changed.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (continued)

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (“ECL") rather than only incurred credit losses
as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, debt instruments
measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS
15 'Revenue from contracts with customers’, lease
receivables, loan commitments and certain financial
guarantee contracts. While the Group has not
yet undertaken a detailed assessment of how its
impairment provisions would be affected by the
new model, it may result in an earlier recognition of
credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and
extent of the Group's disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption
of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. Based on
the transitional provisions in the completed HKFRS
9, early adoption in phases was only permitted
for annual reporting periods beginning before 1
February 2015. After that date, the new rules must
be adopted in their entirety. The Group does not
intend to adopt HKFRS 9 before its mandatory date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

®)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group's financial
statements and has identified the following areas
that are likely to be affected:

o Revenue from service - the application of
HKFRS 15 may result in the identification
of separate performance obligations which
could affect the timing of the recognition of
revenue.

o Accounting for certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract - certain costs which are
currently expensed may need to be recognised
as an asset under HKFRS 15.

o Rights of return HKFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right
to recover the goods from the customer and
the refund obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
(continued)

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the
impact of the new rules on the Group's financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the next twelve
months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$47,685,000, see Note
29. However, the Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will result in
the recognition of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the Group's profit
and classification of cash flows.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (continued)

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements that
will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other new/revised HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC)
interpretations that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a material impact on the Group.

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation and combination (continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

Business combination (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 in consolidated income statement.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation and combination (continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (continued)
(a)  Business combination (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted
to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in the
consolidated income statement. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

222 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation and combination (continued)

222 Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Executive Directors that
make strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

()

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates or the currency in which funds
from financing activities are generated (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Currency translation differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%-10%

Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Office furniture and equipment 18%-25%

Plant and equipment 9%-33%

Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

2.6.1 Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

96

POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

2.6.1 Goodwill (continued)
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

2.6.2 Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. The contractual customer relations have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method from three to ten years over the expected life
of the customer relationships.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Cost represents upfront prepayments
made for the rights to use the land for periods varying from 10
to 50 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease or when there is impairment, the impairment
is charged to the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2

FESHBRYUE (&)

2.6

2.7

2.8

BEE(H)

2.6.1H&(E)
EESFRITHER  XEES
1 30 B 5 39 oA B R AT B 3R L
B ELEERRET - BEEE
WIS EE B AR EE A e
SHEELER  JREeEAFRAE
EHEAFERLEXANRSE
FRBENNERARASY - BER
TR o

2.6. 258K FEFBF
REBAHBRENAGNEFPBIE
ERAEBHOATFERER &
WRFHEEREEARAEAFHK
REBAAR AT TR - BEH D
FREGZHE  PREEFPBE
—EHERNTEFES -

HE L

MG L iR AR Rt 35 KoM B 1R 5
R o I RE A LR M2 2 B
TR RHI10E50%F - HE L HEHERN
HHARER A EES W RT MR - %
EHBRE  AEREERARERTH

FERMEENRE

59 O R M6 P 6 3T REEE o e 155 (58 PR 7 1 B
HOBVEE  ASFETRENH -
BEHENEEANROAREREENS
EREHELRRATESHINE - RE
BRREERHEREA T REEENE
8o D BABREQFEBLEKA
‘ROEE RAFEREEZANRSE -
MR EERENS - AREZAERA
BRREREREELBEM)ORIEKTF
BDEERR - BREBN CRIRBEN
FeRmEEASREPHIMAERER
AR EETHR AT o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A\
RO

87} 55 ¥R 2R B 51

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through income statement, loans
and receivables, and available for sales. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition. As at 31 December
2016, the Group's financial assets mainly include loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets
except for the amounts that are settled or expected to
be settled more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables include “trade and bills
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables”, “restricted
cash” and “cash at bank and on hand” in the consolidated
balance sheet (Notes 2.13 and 2.14).

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
income statement. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments or loans and
receivables have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. On derecognition of financial assets,
the difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration received is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.1

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment testing of trade and
other receivables is described in note 2.13.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.13 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade, bills and other receivables including retention money
receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment
of trade, bills and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that
the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indication
that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against administrative
expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.16 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payable are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company's
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBERHEE®)
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 ERRIELEFER(E)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EAEFZH

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Inside basis differences A EE
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability ELEFMERIREERABENTE
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax REBEEREBEREZEWBRE

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives the
Group the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the forseeable future, deferred income tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising
from the associate’s undistributed profit is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

()

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Pension
Scheme") set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Pension obligations (continued)

(9]

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are
due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), the Group is
required to contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately 7% to 20%
of the wages for the year/period of those employees in
the PRC. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions to these retirement
benefits schemes are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.19 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

J including any market performance conditions;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Share-based payments (continued)

(a)

()

Equity-settled share based payment transactions

(continued)

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date and therefore the
grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group

entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiaries undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.

2.20 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Provisions (continued)

2.21

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities,
as described below. The Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customers,
the type of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables, including retention money receivables, is
reasonably assured.

(b) Provision of services
Revenue from payment solutions services are recognised
when the corresponding services are rendered.

Revenue from fixed-price maintenance services contracts
is generally recognised in the period in which the services
are provided, using the straight-line basis over the terms of
contracts.

(c) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

2

TESTBRBE®R)

2.20 BE(E)

2.21

BERRMEARAT

WARE TRUEE  RETREKREER
LEYERRLE  BABREEERNA
EZR - ERBEEEEREMN—EERE
TR AT REMEEAR - e RERAE -

BEZRRAHMN X RRENTEEAHA
X HBENE  ZMNERRERFD
SHteREREMARITEERRNFN
fh - BEERREBEMB MR BRI ST
BHX °

WA TR

WAT B RSB RKEZ 2 FHERE
SRR 2 BAGRIR - FARRIT - B
EREER - EWMAS BRI A E
BRREENSAARERAERER I
BT A AKE S EB TR A B 15 ¢F (40
T ) B - REERHEBEA - AE
ERBEANERELEREFPRN - R
SRBRSALZFNEEHEL A

(a) #HEEm
EEBETEBRRNERTRRR
RPEMEMS - BT AN
Yo (=0 4 A 8 Ui SRR (2 9 e e FE 4
2R DERHEERBA

ERIRH
RERES MR RRBERA
RN ERRGRIRRER -

RERBEBRE NN EEREKA
—RREHEREHENENBAR
BEROREERER -

(b)

(c) FIEWKA
) B LA B B FI) 2R 5K 15 5 B 491
R -

ZE-REER 105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm & R 15 ¥ R BT 5

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

2.23 Value added tax refund
Value added tax refund are recognised in “other income” in
the consolidated income statement when there is a reasonable
assurance that the refund will be received which generally occurs
upon the receipt of the approval of tax refund from the local tax
bureau.

2.24 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated income statement at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all the attached conditions.

2.25 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets
when it is probable that the project will be a success considering
its commercial and technological feasibility, and costs can be
measured reliably. Other development expenditures are expensed
as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.26 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group'’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group'’s financial performance.

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), HK$, United States
dollar ("US$") and European dollar (“"EUR"). The majority
of assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$
and US$, and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject to
foreign exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominating in a currency other than HK$, RMB or USS$,
which are the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group currently does
not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

The management considers the foreign exchange risk
with respect to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged
to US$ and transactions denominated in US$ are mainly
carried out by entities with the same functional currency.
The exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.

For group companies with HK$ as their functional currency

As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year and equity of the Group
would have been approximately HK$6,365,000 (2015:
HK$6,621,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on translation
of RMB denominated cash at bank and on hand and the
current account with related parties.

As at 31 December 2016, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year and equity of the Group
would have been approximately HK$508,000 (2015:
HK$6,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly as a result
of the foreign exchange difference on translation of
EUR denominated cash at bank and on hand and trade
receivables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

()

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Foreign exchange risk (continued)
For group companies with RMB as their functional currency

As at 31 December 2016, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year and equity of the Group
would have been approximately HK$2,141,000 (2015:
HK$5,044,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange difference on translation
of HK$ denominated cash at bank and on hand and the
current account with related parties.

For the group company with EUR as its functional currency

As at 31 December 2016, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against EUR with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year and equity of the Group
would have been approximately HK$613,000 higher/lower
(2015: the loss for the year would have been HK$238,000
lower/higher), respectively, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of US$ denominated
cash at bank and on hand and trade payables.

Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade,
bills and other receivables, restricted cash and deposits
with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade, bills and other receivables,
restricted cash and deposits with banks represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group are mainly
placed with state-owned financial institutions and
reputable banks. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to reputable and creditworthy
customers with an appropriate financial strength, credit
history and an appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the authorisation
of credit limits to individual customers and recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

(d

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of
goods and services to the top five customers constituted
45.4% (2015: 44.4%) of the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2016. They accounted for
approximately 47.5% (2015: 37.5%) of the gross trade
receivable balances as at 31 December 2016. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely monitored
on an ongoing basis to minimise such credit risk.

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash at bank and on hand and ensure
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank borrowings.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group's finance department maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining adequate amount of cash at bank
and on hand and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest-bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
maintained cash at bank and on hand of approximately
HK$2,207,205,000 (2015: HK$2,144,312,000), that are
expected to be readily available and sufficient to meet the
cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence, management
considers that Group's exposure to liquidity risk is not
significant.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying values
as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

B REREE(E)
3.1 HKEBEEGE)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) FEBELEEE)
Less than
1 year Total
PR—F Mt
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FET FTExT
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+ZA=1+—H
Trade payables FERTRR R 662,485 662,485
Other payables and accruals H A R AR TR R FE BT 0T 37,976 37,976
Total BEt 700,461 700,461
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H
Trade payables JEBRFR 710,529 710,529
Other payables and accruals H A BR R L FERT 5B 59,207 59,207
Total fBET 769,736 769,736
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FIFEE

The income and operating cash flows of the Group and
the Company are both substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Both the Group and the
Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, except
for deposits placed with banks.

As at 31 December 2016, if interest rates on all interest-
bearing bank and cash deposits had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year and equity of the Group would have been
HK$8,406,000 (2015: HK$8,227,000) higher/lower
respectively, due to higher/lower interest income earned
on the deposits.

3.2 Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debt.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

33

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total capital. As
at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group had no borrowings,
the gearing ratio is not applicable.

Fair value estimation

The inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value
are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets is the current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3 financial
instruments include techniques such as discounted cash flow
analysis.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique, management
has taken into account the estimated amount that the Group
would receive to sell the instrument at the balance sheet date,
taking into account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted cash flow
techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management'’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market
related rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
the fair value hierarchy classifications during the year.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group had no material
financial instruments stated at fair values.

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

arrangements as at 31 December 2015 and 2016.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated income
statement are evaluated based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates
and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period are addressed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the current tax
and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2016

3

B REREE(E)
3.3 AFREME(E)

AURE=Rem T ARENEEMER
MERRRREREDMERM -

ERMRRSRERNE - EBECH R
AEEERBMUARNSEERHETANG
AR BEMRARSFHEREERMN
o HERMRRERERM - BEFRE
REREREEENGERE BNRERTR
EEUTANRBT SR EES -

FN - BEATESAOBRANEREE
BREE-

RZE—RFRZE-—RE+_A=1—
B AEETESKRATETENSH
TE-

BETHEENSRMER
RZE-RFERZF-—AF+ZA=1—
B HESRAERSRABAFLHE -
AT R R BB LIZE -

EEREFHEET RAE

FRNR B A RS R A fEET A - TDERB
BRI EMRE  BERHREREREER
THESAELANZMHMEL - AEEEH
ARAROMG RERR - RULHRE - AENE
AEERTEL EERMNERERER - TXET
ABARREEREH T —ENRARNEER
BENREEFHEABENMG RERR -

3.4

(a) FIBHRIELEB K
HAMEHETRER  FREHERNH
B - FZR P RABNREET BLR
E o BREOBRFERARTCREBT
R AEZRRE EETIRNE M
BMELEHREERAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm & B 15 ¥ R bid 5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Income taxes and deferred taxation (continued)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is written down to net realisable
value when there is an objective evidence that the cost of
inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and
damaged, if they have become wholly or partially obsolete, or
if their selling prices have declined. The cost of inventories may
also not be recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred
to make the sales have increased. The amount written off in
the consolidated income statement is the difference between
the carrying value and net realisable value of the inventories.
In determining whether the inventories can be recoverable,
significant judgement is required. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
by all means to which the amount will be recovered. During the
year, certain inventories written down in prior years have been
subsequently sold at prices higher than their then net realisable
value. Provision regarding these inventories have been reversed.
Based on management'’s best estimates, an impairment provision
of HK$50,566,000 was made as at 31 December 2016 (31
December 2015: HK$68,549,000) (note 18).

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
Provisions are applied to the receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of the receivables and provision for impaired receivables in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

The Group is principally engaged in the sales of E-payment Terminals
products, the provision of payment solutions services and maintenance
services. Revenue and other income recognised during the year were as
follows:

AR E AR A

AEBIRNEHEETTNRRER  =HE

XA RRG R GERT - REBFED

FERHUW AR ERAIT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_HA=t+—-HLEE

2016 2015
—B-R"F —T-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue A
Sales of E-payment Terminals products HEETINRIRER 2,757,632 2,841,393
Services: B
Payment solutions services AR RRE 125,101 -
Maintenance services MEERRTS 32,109 29,401
2,914,842 2,870,794
Other income Hil A
Interest income FEWA 15,005 19,833
Value added tax refund (note (i) RERER () 44,840 79,600
Subsidy income N 10,138 8,402
Others HAth 1,610 1,400
71,593 109,235

note (i) The amount represents the Group's entitlement to value added tax refund

in relation to the sales of self developed software products in the PRC.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The management reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. The management has
determined the operating segments based on the internal reports
reviewed by the Executive Directors to make strategic decisions. The
Group is principally engaged in the E-payment Terminals solutions
business, and the management considers that the Group operates in
one single business segment.

The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC (China excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), the United States of America (the
“US") and ltaly. The management assesses the performance of the
Group from a geographic perspective based on the locations of the
subsidiaries in which revenues are generated.
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

based on a measurement of segmental operating profit/(loss).

An analysis of the Group's turnover and results during the year by

segment is as follows:

6 ZDEERM®

The management assesses the performance of the operating segments EEREREDBLERT,/ (BB N3G

REDBNRR -
REBFEREDBE DN AREEXERE

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE2-Z-RET-RA=+-HLEE

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan Hong Kong us Italy Elimination Total
FE(ES
RAR
= L3 % EYE ERF e By
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000
TR THER TR TR TR TR
Turnover from external customers  RESMEEFHE £ 1,622,321 1,002,909 176,669 72,943 - 2,914,842
Inter-segment turnover NEREESE 914,695 163,560 - - (1,078,255) -
Total turnover BEXE 2,537,016 1,206,469 176,669 72,943 (1,078,255) 2,914,842
Segmental earnings before AERFISHE - BiE -

interest expense, taxes, TEREEREN

depreciation and amortisation ([EBITDA])

("EBITDA") 438,711 249,023 5,055 3,065 3,623 699,477
Depreciation ne (6,180) (253) (345) (377) - (7,155)
Amortisation B (2,352) - - (877) - (3.229)
Segmental operating profit DREE R 430,179 248,770 4,710 1,81 3,623 689,093
Finance costs BsBR (10,794)
Profit before income tax P AT &R 678,299
Income tax expense FERFAYX (74,865)
Profit for the year FREH 603,434
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 PEERG®

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_F-AFt-A=1t-HIEE

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan Hong Kong us [taly ~ Elimination Total
hE(EE
RPR
2ERIN) BA EJEl BAF iR am
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET THT FET FET FET FET

Turnover from external customers ~ RENBEFHLER 1,748,803 999,635 105,433 16,923 - 2,870,7%
Inter-segment turnover NEREESE 894,733 112,275 - - (1,007,008) -
Total turnover BEEH 2643536 1,111,910 105433 16,923 (1,007,008) 2,870,794
Segmental EBITDA A HBEBITDA 367,169 323777  (24,159) (906) (2,904) 662,977
Depreciation e (3,802) (260) (340) (158) - (4,560)
Amortisation i (6) - - (438) - (444)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) D IBEEEF],/ (BB R

and profit/(loss) before BRETERALRR/ (B18)

income tax 363361 323517 (24,499) (1,502) (2,904) 657,973
Income tax expense FERFAYX (37,687)
Profit for the year FREF 620,286
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SEEHR®
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016 and additions RZBE-—RET_A=+—HNHBEEERE
to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as BARBEZE-E—R"FT_A=1T—HItFE
follows: FRBEENFEWT :

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZE-R"E+=-A=1+—-8

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan Hong Kong us Italy Elimination Total
HE(RE
RFR
2B B E3E BAF B nE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$S'000
TER TER TERT TER TER TERT

Segment assets HBEE 3,360,671 1,483,999 127,537 70,631  (609,775) 4,433,063
Segment liabilities AEEE 1,224,057 113,234 167,499 20,695  (593,705) 931,780

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE2-2-R"ET-RA=t-BHLEE

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan Hong Kong us Italy Elimination Total
hE(RE -
RAR
aERM) o E3E] BERA e #E
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TER THER THER TR TR TER

Additions to non-current assets ERBEERARE 179,980 122 170 887 - 181,159
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 and additions RZE—RF+ZA=+—HONDPEEERE
to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 are as BARBEZ-E—HAF+T-_A=1T—HItFE

follows: ERBEENRENT ¢

As at 31 December 2015
RZE—HFT-A=+—H

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan Hong Kong us [taly ~ Elimination Total
hE(EE
RFR
&R BA EJEl BAA iR am
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT THT FET FET FET FET

Segment assets NBEE 3,064,034 1,539,148 86,403 43,019  (652,405) 4,080,199

Segment liabilities AEEE 1,302,751 201,504 131,075 5467  (651,197) 989,600

Year ended 31 December 2015
BE_T-AFT-A=t-BIFE

PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macau and
Taiwan Hong Kong Us Italy  Elimination Total
hE (&R -
BFIR
= BE EJE BAR B ek
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Additions to non-current assets ERBEENRE 22,431 15,124 - 15,826 - 53,381
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segmental EBITDA represents segmental operating profit/(loss) before
finance costs, income tax expense, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, amortisation of leasehold land and intangible assets.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land, intangible assets, inventories, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills receivables, restricted cash and cash at bank
and on hand. Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade payables,
other payables and accruals and taxation payable.

Additions to non-current assets mainly comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets including additions resulting
from acquisitions through business combinations and prepayments for
acquisitions of subsidiaries.

In 2016, revenue of approximately HK$529,405,000 is derived from
the largest customer, representing 18.2% of the total revenue, which
is attributable to the HK operating segment; HK$263,550,000 is
derived from the second largest customer, representing 9.0% of the
total revenue, which is attributable to the PRC operating segment. In
2015, revenue of approximately HK$474,805,000 is derived from the
largest customer, representing 16.5% of the total revenue, which is
attributable to the HK operating segment; HK$256,467,000 is derived
from the second largest customer, representing 8.9% of the total
revenue, which is attributable to the PRC operating segment.

Information provided to the Executive Directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC, the US and
Italy.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location, which is
determined by the geographical location in which the asset is located,
is as follows:

2EER ()

DIEEBITDAEMBRRENE « FIBHHEST - W
¥ WMERRETE HELEEARER
BEMNNDBELERT,/(BE) sHEEEE
ZOENE BELRE HELH EFE
EFE RekEMERZE  BRETKX
EWEE  SRHEBEUARBRITIRFLERE -
SHEEFTEAEERAES  HMEMNEREK
FEETERIE DA K FE (AR T o

FRBEEFETZERENE  BEER
# BRERE(RREBEBAHUBMENA
B RAEHB AR ENRR -

RZZF— T 58 4529,405,0007% T &Y
WATREGZREFR ZZWAEBKA
M182% T BBEREBEKH B AHY
263,550,000 8 T MATIREE-KREF -
ZEWA BB AD.0% I EBERN P EEK
D MZT—AF - BEHI474,805,0008
THRATIREEARER S B AGEK
AE165% U HBNEBEB D - BELY
256,467,000 8 T MATIREE-KEF -
ZEWNEEWAR8.9% T BRERNFHESD

2

MMTEERENHENFRGARBRRA
A= e

AKBIENEE  $E XBEREANBE
iiip: i

SR ARMENE SN AREERDEERS
m :

As at 31 December
R+=HB=+—H
2016 2015
“E-RE Z—ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Non-current assets FRBEE
PRC, other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan PE(EE - B R EERIN) 196,845 27,517
Hong Kong 5% 626 15,769
us X 125 306
Italy VN 15,048 16,022
212,644 59,614
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BRUEIIMNAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative SFABHERA  HERZRITHRAZNAXS
expenses are analysed as follows: T -

Year ended 31 December
BZt-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-XE ZT-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

THR TAT
Remuneration to the Company's auditor RRARZEEA S 2,100 1,800
Remuneration to other auditors Hibz8En e 208 352
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14) % « BE R REFTE (K 14) 7,155 4,560
Amortisation of leasehold land (note 16) ME (M 16) 5 6
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 15) B EE#HE(KE15) 3,224 438
Employee benefit expenses (including EEBNAZ(REEENSE)

Directors’ emoluments) (note 10) (Mt3E10) 308,140 280,633
Costs of inventories sold (note 18) ERFERA(KIFE18) 1,620,895 1,702,730
Operating lease rentals in respect of buildings BTFNREHEERS 25,066 18,392
Research and development costs B R AR 183,614 157,734
Sales commission HERS 13,661 13,293
Provision for impairment of receivables, net (note 19(c)) &M BB (B B {8 — F 58 (P 55 19(c)) 586 3,666
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERRENER 117 -
(Reversal of provision)/provision for obsolete REFE (BERD), BE

inventories (note 18) (Mi3E18) (17,983) 39,492
Donation BR - 1,106

8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 8 SNEFER
The net foreign exchange loss recognised in administrative expenses for BEZZT-AFTZAZT-HLEFERTR
the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$7,270,000 (2015: IS R EER ESMNEF B 0 /&7,270,0008 7T
HK$7,618,000). (ZE—A%F 7,618,000/ 87L) °
9  FINANCE COSTS 9 HMBEA
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
“E-R"¥ C—T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Factoring costs REXBER 10,794 -
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

10 BEERIRXX(BRESEHE)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015

—E-RE C—T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER TAT

Wages and salaries TERF® 267,322 241,487
Share options granted to employees BT EENERRE 3,513 13,568
Social security and pension costs HERERBEREKAR 37,305 25,578
308,140 280,633

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016 included three Directors (2015:
two). The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2015: three)

individuals during the year are as follows:

EEBREHAL
AEEBE-_T—RFT_A=+—HLFE
IERRHEALEE=-2EE("T—0F W
B) AEERNBTME(ZT—RF: =4)
ATHBEEIMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015

—E-RE —T—-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances, share options and benefits in kind & 285 - BREL EWET 4,925 12,864
Pension cost RURE AR 26 53
4,951 12,917

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

e F o5

Number of individuals

AE
2016 2015
“E-RE C—ZT—RF

Emolument band B 4870
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T-2,500,000 % 70 2 -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& 7T -4,000,000 % 70 - 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 %7z -4,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 %7t -5,500,000 /& 7T - 1
2 3
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FBHEX

122

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

2016 2015

—E-XE ZE—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Current income tax BIHRFT/S B

— PRC corporate income tax — B EMER 41,454 11,588

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEH 46,826 59,481

— Overseas profits tax —BINFEH 644 -
Over provision in prior year, net (Note a) BEFEBREARE  FR(MiEa) (871) (32,476)
Total current income tax BIERPT 1S 16 S 858 88,053 38,593
Deferred income tax EITFTSH (13,188) (906)
Income tax expense SRS 74,865 37,687

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31

December 2016.

Taxes on overseas profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Note a: Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. ("Wonder Pax"), a wholly

owned subsidiary of the Group, obtained the approval from the relevant

applicable tax authorities in April 2015 for a preferential tax treatment and

is fully exempted from PRC corporate tax for two years, beginning in 2014,

followed by a 50% tax exemption for the ensuing three years. As such, the

applicable corporate income tax rate of Wonder Pax is 12.5% for the year

ended 31 December 2016. The over provision of income tax accrued by

Wonder Pax in financial year 2014, being calculated at the tax rate of 25%,

of approximately HK$32,976,000 was credited to the profit and loss for the

year ended 31 December 2015.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FREEMAX )
Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from BRER-ZZZENF-A—BEROHPEPER
1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law"), companies in the PRC are subject to BEREICEMERE] - RERRAHMR
income tax of 25% unless preferential rate is applicable. Pax Computer 5% METEH - RIEEEMNEZER - AR A
Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax Computer Shenzhen”), a wholly MEAR B RAEREMORYIDAERAR(E
owned subsidiary of the Company, is located in the Shenzhen Special B EHRIN DA R RIEERE - BB K
Economic Zone. Pursuant to Caishui [2016] Circular 49 jointly released B BERTEER BREENNEZE SN
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation, the KA B TERME S 308 & &M r) BT [2016]
National Development and Reform Commission and the Ministry ABH EREBHHKEENERETAR
of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC, management FHE - ERERTEETERAIERRES
performed self-assessment on the eligibility for the tax incentives. BHECE HEZT-RETZA=tT—HL
Management estimated that Pax Computer Shenzhen was qualified FEEEZBI0%EELEMEHE - REDL
as a National Key Software Enterprise and entitled to the preferential EMERE BRFERRIBR N RME
corporate income tax rate of 10% for the year ended 31 December ¥ HE_Z-—RFTA=T-HLEEHE
2016. Pax Computer Shenzhen was qualified as a High and New BRATEMBHEAR15% o kT4 FTs
Technology Enterprise under the CIT Law and its applicable corporate EREENEREE {5 -
income tax rate was 15% for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
application of the preferential tax rate is a critical accounting estimate
as set out in Note 4(a) to these financial statements.
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the REERAGHIENNHIERARAEARE
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax BB AR RS B E B85 ) /o pniE 39 B = 5t
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the respective EREmeEnEENT
jurisdictions as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t—-ALEE
2016 2015
—E-R"E —T-hRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 250 A g 7 678,299 657,973
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to EREERRES RN ER
profits in the respective countries BB EAENHIE 89,279 64,086
Income not subject to taxation AT A (6,492) (1,462)
Tax incentives for research and development expenses R Bl s A 32 OB B 2 5] FhAf 28
available for a subsidiary incorporated ERmBEEE (M)
in the PRC (note (i)) (5,587) (5,352)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes BB E A R RS 1,148 8,219
Unrecognised tax losses RERWTIEERE 8 4,672
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses BRBTARER 2 HIBEE (2,620) -
Over provision in prior year, net (note a) F-FEEERE  FR(MTa) (871) (32,476)
74,865 37,687

note (i): The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority relating to the
research and development expenses of a subsidiary in the PRC. Under such
tax incentive rule, the Group may claim an additional tax deduction up to
50% of the relevant research and development expenses incurred in a year
approved by the PRC tax authority.

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 13.2% (2015: 9.7%) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

BERRMEARAT

PEE() : AR — R R B A M & A R ph A7 3
EREGTENRGRARAN —ERAR
E-REAENBEERI AEETE
FENRER RS REFAERNEER
#)50% @ FR BB MBI o

HE-Z—X"E+-_A=+—BILEE - M
FYHREAREA132% (ZE—HF :9.7%) °

ZE-REER 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm & R 15 ¥ R BT 5

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SRER
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the FRERBADIZEAREE ABIEERE
year attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted EaFBRFEABETEBRMNEFSEE
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. =i
Year ended 31 December
BEt-RA=t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-Rf C—T-1F
Profit attributable to the owners of the RARRAEAEIEER(FAT)
Company (HK$'000) 600,908 620,736
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETEBRNETESE(TR)
in issue (thousand shares) 1,114,457 1,108,940
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) FRERBF(GRAT) 0.539 0.560
(b) Diluted (b) #8

124

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of potentially dilutive ordinary shares:
share options. For the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average market share price of the
Company'’s shares for the period) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share option.
The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

SREERFNNFETARRRERHAE
ABERENENEBRUAABDHT
TREMINETOH - AREREEA
BRI EBIRELRE - SRR
& REATEEBREMNREENE
BEEHE  UETTRATVE(EAKX
AR AR FEME)BEOKND

B AFENRNDHE ERR
FEAX T T (R R FE 2 BT RO MR BB fELL

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=t+—-HLEE

2016 2015

—F-x"F _—T-0F

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company (HK$'000) N2 &l#A AR (FH7T) 600,908 620,736
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BERTLRRMETHER(TR)

(thousand shares) 1,114,457 1,108,940
Adjustments for share options (thousand shares) FEEREEL MR (TR) 8,557 16,681
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for BREEE B H T AR INE T

diluted earnings per share (thousand shares) (F) 1,123,014 1,125,621
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ per share) BRESEN(SRBTT) 0.535 0.551
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13 DIVIDENDS 13 BRE
In 2016, interim dividends of HK$0.04 per ordinary share (2015: RZIZE—RE ARGEXHTEHREEFRE
HK$0.02 per ordinary share) were paid, amounting to approximately AR0.04BT(ZE—HEF : BREMAR0.02
HK$44,715,000 (2015: HK$22,229,000). A final dividend of HK$0.04 BT - BEKI44,715,0008 T(ZF—RHEF :
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 22,229,000%7) « ¥R —_E—+FMA=-+h
HK$0.02 per ordinary share), amounting to HK$44,315,000 (2015: AZBRRBERERZFABE_Z—RF
HK$22,240,000), is to be proposed at the annual general meeting on T A=+ BUHFEZRBEREGHR LB
25 April 2017. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend Ro04E T(ZE—HE: BREMAR0.02
payable. BIr) 0 AB44,3150008 T (ZF —HF
22,240,000/87T) ° NEF B KL T RARZE
&S o

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=t—-ALEE

2016 2015

“E-RE —T—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THRr TAT

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.04 (2015: HK$ 0.02) EXEREER0.04 B THHAKE
per ordinary share (ZE—ARF:0.02%71) 44,715 22,229
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.04 (2015: HK$ 0.02) FRE®R0.04BTHEZRHARE
per ordinary share (ZE—ARF:0.02%71) 44,315 22,240
89,030 44,469
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YXE - BERZRE
Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
E BAE

BF  NERKE  GRRRE HERRR hE it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TERL TER TER TER TER TERL

Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-"E+ZAZ1-H
LEE

Opening net book amount BORESE - 1,386 4,909 2,970 2215 11,480
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 30) WERMB AR (HE30) - - 1,115 - - 1,115
Additions RE - 805 6,160 57,997 743 65,705
Disposals LE - - (17 - - (17)
Depreciation (note 7) TE(KT) - (669) (3.219) (2,487) (780) (7,155)
Exchange differences it - (80) (253) (2,684) (92) (3,109)
Closing net book amount BREEFE - 1442 8,595 55,796 2,086 67,919
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=1-H

Cost kA 6,708 3,300 22,539 61,378 7,107 101,032
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (6,708) (1,858) (13,944) (5,582) (5,021) (33,113)
Net book amount FRFE - 1,482 8,595 55,796 2,086 67,919
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 % BERREE
Office
Leasehold ~ furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HE WAE
BT  DERE KERRE RERRE e @i

HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAL TATL TATL TAL TAL TAL

Year ended 31 December 2015 H2-2-1%+-A=1-H

JI¥:353
Opening net book amount HREFE 591 - 3,738 4315 2,784 11,428
Acquisition of a subsidiary hE-ERBLE - - 202 - - 202
Additions AE - 1,664 3,290 - 294 5,248
Depreciation (note 7) mE(HT) (581) (289) (2,107 (818) (766) (4,560)
Exchange differences R ER (10) 10 214) (527) (97) (838)
Closing net book amount BREEFE - 1,386 4,909 2,970 2215 11,480
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RE+ZA=+—-H
Cost B 7122 2,649 16,323 6,418 6,970 39,482
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (7,122) (1,263) (11,414) (3,448) (4,755) (28,00)
Net book amount REFE - 1386 4,909 2,970 2,215 11,480
Depreciation expense of HK$1,633,000 (2015: Nil) has been charged to FEME1,633,0008T(ZE—HF: &)F
cost of goods sold and HK$5,522,000 (2015: HK$4,560,000) has been SFABSERARS,522,0008 T (ZE—RF -
charged to administrative expenses. 4,560,000 7) BT ATTHRY ©
For the year ended 31 December 2016, additions of plant and BE_Z—RE+-_A=1+—HIEE  HE
equipment of HK$51,091,000 were transferred from inventories (2015: NMERERNEST,091,0008 c hEREFEE(Z
Nil). T-HE |

126 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fm & B 15 ¥ R bid 5

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15 EREE

Contractual
customer
relationships
Goodwill and others Total
BHNEFR
HE BEREKHEAM At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_ZT—XE
+-ZB=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HYEREFE 8,144 7,481 15,625
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 30) Ue BB BB A B (BisE 30) 60,833 22,202 83,035
Amortisation (note 7) B (FE7) - (3,224) (3,224)
Exchange differences BEE 5 5 (4,394) (1,650) (6,044)
Closing net book amount BREREFE 64,583 24,809 89,392
At 31 December 2016 RZB—A"E+=ZA=+—H
Cost DN 64,583 28,293 92,876
Accumulated amortisation BT - (3.484) (3.484)
Net book amount REFE 64,583 24,809 89,392
AERKEHAERAR ZB—REER
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

15 BEEE®)

Contractual
customer
relationships
Goodwill and others Total
BHEE
HE BEREM &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAERT TERT TERT
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E-afF
tZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HIPIBR N HE - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—fEMB AT 8,181 7,955 16,136
Amortisation (note 7) e (KE7) - (438) (438)
Exchange differences Rz (37) (36) (73)
Closing net book amount HRIRE A 8,144 7,481 15,625
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-HEF+-A=+-—H
Cost (DN 8,144 7,919 16,063
Accumulated amortisation RETHE - (438) (438)
Net book amount REFE 8,144 7,481 15,625

128

Amortisation of HK$3,224,000 (2015: HK$438,000) has been charged

to administrative expenses.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs related to acquisitions
of subsidiaries and monitored by the management at the operating
segment level. Most of the goodwill is related to the operating segment
of PRC, other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. The following is a
summary of goodwill allocation for each operating segment:

3,224,000 (= F— T4 : 438,000/ 7)) &
HEFTATRAY °

HEENRGASERKENBRR AR
MNREEFBNURXERENERER - K
NEBEADER(EE  BPIRG BRI OE
ENHER UNTRBEENBNAENEM

& -
=

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_HA=t+—-HLEE

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
PRC, other than Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan HEI(EE - RARAERM)
Nanchang Kashuo Information Technology MERREERMERARR
Company Limited and its subsidiaries HIFB QA
("Kashuo CGU") ((RARASELEM]) 41,049 -
Suzhou leasy Information Technology BMATHEESRERARAT
Co., Ltd (“Suzhou leasy") (T&ME1T5)) 15,696 -
Italy BERA
Pax Italia S.r.l. Pax Italia S.r.l. 7,838 8,144
64,583 8,144
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15

16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15 EBEEE®)
Impairment test for goodwill related to the acquisition HEEFHERRMERARRENE
of Nanchang Kashuo Information Technology Company AR EEZEERERNR
Limited and its subsidiaries
The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on a value- ReE4BUMNOREBEENEREENE
in-use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projection BT LA ERBEREMI AN T F K
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five- BERLBABIRE192% RAHAESRE
year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 19.2%. Thereafter, the cash FRAETEE - g - RERSREMEAN
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rates not exceeding BnlERETGERAREEFEMLEMER
the long-term average growth rate for the countries in which the CGU FNRATERE o
operates.
For Kashuo CGU, management prepared its budget within the five-year BREHACELEMME  EEEREMNASF
period using the compound annual growth rate of 23.8%. Growth rate HNBEARBES FIERET23.8%#ET
of 3% is used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-year period. TEMERSREMANIEREHRER3% °
The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded ENCREEFESH 2 AIKESEBREN
carrying value as at 31 December 2016. There was no impairment Z—RFETZA=tT—BZEEE -BE_F
provision for intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2016 —RNETZA=THLEEE BEEVEE
(2015: Nil). An increase in pre-tax discount rate to 21.2% would BREREE S —RF &) HAaREEs
remove the remaining headroom. 21.2% BEEEFIERERE
LEASEHOLD LAND 16 HE L
The Group's interests in leasehold land represent upfront payments for REERAE TR ERIE TMAT AR - &
land and their net carrying values are analysed as follows: REFEATNAT -
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-R"E —T-hRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TAT
Opening net carrying value YRR EFE 203 221
Amortisation (note 7) B (MIEET7) (5) (6)
Exchange difference EHER (12) (12)
Closing net carrying value HREREFE 186 203
The Group's leasehold land is located in the PRC and is held on leases REBEMHEELHUAFTE HEA10E50
of between 10 to 50 years. Amortisation of the Group's leasehold land Fo RAEBRETHMMBHEEC T ATHRA
has been charged to the administrative expenses. )
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17 SUBSIDIARIES 17 HEBAF

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016: RZE—RF+-A=+—HB FEWEAF
REMT -
Place of incorporationand  Principal activities and Particulars of issued and
Name type of legal entity place of operation paid up/registered capital Interest held
TMA L HR TEEBR BRTRMRRE/
£ EEERER EXH aMERF B frisiEs
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products and ~ HK$113,125,000 100%
BERMBARAT company provision of related services 113,125,000 7T
& BRAR in Hong Kong
EBEEHET X NRRERR
RERRERS
Pax Computer Technology ~ The PRC, limited liability Development and sales of HK$200,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (*) company E-payment Terminals products and 200,000,000 T
BREHEMORY)  HE - BRAF provision of related services in the PRC
BRAR EFERERHEE TR A RREMR
RE ARG
Wonder Pax Technology The PRC, limited liability Development of software and hardware of ~ HK$20,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (*) company E-payment Terminals products and 20,000,000t
BERERER(R) HE BRAFE provision of related services in PRC
BRAR EFEREE T ARRERNEYT R
B R R ERRY
Pax Technology, Inc. The US, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products Us$1,000 100%
company in the US 1,000%7T
X6 ARAA EXBHET T ARRER
Pax Italia S. r. 1. Italy, limited liability company ~ Development and customising software EUR100,000 70%
BAR ARARA systems and sales of E-payment 100,0008( T
Terminals products in Italy
EEANBEERBAMCBSZHER
HEBFXNRRER
Shanghai New Kashuo The PRC, limited liability Provision of payment solution services RMB30,000,000 51%
Information Technology company in the PRC 30,000,000A R
Company Limited HE - AR EREREINEATRRES
("Shanghai Kashuo")
FERRHASERRA
(I &3t
Suzhou leasy Information  The PRC, limited liability Development and sales of enterprise RMB7,500,000 60%
Technology Co., Ltd ) company resource planning management 7,500,000 A R%

FNATHES
HBARLA

RE - BRAE

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

software in the PRC
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17 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17 MEAR(E)

* The English names of Pax Computer Shenzhen, Wonder Pax, Shanghai Kashuo * BEREEFTERAY  BEEE  LERHR
and Suzhou leasy represent the best effort by the management of the Group BMNATHEEEANRXEE  RERX
in translating their Chinese names as they do not have official English names. ERRHAREEREI NP XL EHER

5 o
The non-controlling interests in respect of Pax Italia S.r.l., Shanghai BRPax Italia S.rl. - EBRHREMNEITHE
Kashuo and Suzhou leasy are not material. FERERLIERK -
18 INVENTORIES 18 FE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-R"E C—T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHAT

Raw materials [RA# 152,614 169,146

Work in progress & m 116,550 109,116

Finished goods SR 327,375 284,183

596,539 562,445

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the FR REEXRRAAENTFE KA

year amounted to approximately HK$1,620,895,000 (2015: #71,620,895,000%8 (= T — & &F:

HK$1,702,730,000), which included reversal of provision for obsolete 1,702,730,000/870) - Eh BEBREGFEEE

inventories of HK$17,983,000 (2015: provision for obsolete inventories B0 17,983,000 T (ZEZ—0HF BRERFE

of HK$39,492,000). B#5/339,492,000%7T) °
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 BWEREREEWERE RekHf
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES WA
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—~H
2016 2015
—E-XE —IT-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current portion IR )
Trade receivables (note (a)) FEUER 1 (T 3E () 1,245,947 995,353
Amounts due from related parties (note 31(b)) U BBt 75 7 A (BT EE 31(b)) 65,196 70,912
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (note (c) ~ J8 : FEURBR FURE B (T3 () (4,067) (3,694)
Trade receivables, net R BR 5% — 358 1,307,076 1,062,571
Bills receivables (note (b)) M Z= 45 (F7E (b)) 40,370 198,603
Trade and bills receivables P BR TR R B R I 1,347,446 1,261,174
Deposits and other receivables B REAM WA 68,919 43,719
Trade and bills receivables, deposits and FENCER I R B R
other receivables e REMEKFIE 1,416,365 1,304,893
Non-current portion FAHHD
Prepayments for acquisitions of subsidiaries W BB PN B A R FE R 3B
(note 30 (a) and (b)) (PFiF3E30(a) K (b)) - 21,975
Other prepayment H AT 50IR 24,672 -
Others Hity 13,681 9,425
38,353 31,400

ARBENRUEARERTE ZEMAME
WA BREE LA T 5 A

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:
As at 31 December
®+=-—BA=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-XE —ZE-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HK$ BT 19,319 8,658
RMB AR 872,070 947,578
us$ T 502,263 337,261
EUR BT 22,713 11,396
1,416,365 1,304,893

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables approximated their carrying values as at 31 December 2015
and 2016.

R-E—RAFER TR F+_A=1+—8"
ERREZREREE ke hEMERZTER
AN EREEmMERS -
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 EWRRREWREE  ReEkHEM

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) W FRIE(E)
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEUWBREX

The Group's credit terms to trade debtors range generally from
0 to 180 days. However, credit terms of more than 180 days
may be granted to customers on a case-by-case basis upon
negotiation. As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables and amounts due from related
parties is as follows:

AEEBLTEZGEBANEERRHOE
180 BT o AT - KEERR AR ERIE
AAEFPELEBIS0RMEER - R
Z-RAER-T-R"E+ZA=+—8"
JFE WS R R e R L R B 7 3 B B i 0 A 2
T

As at 31 December
R+=HB=+—H
2016 2015
“E-RE Z—ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

TART FHET

Up to 90 days 90 HIAR 846,807 750,231
91 to 180 days 91%180H 277,772 193,517
181 to 365 days 181 %365 H 58,915 37,174
Over 365 days 365U E 127,649 85,343
1,311,143 1,066,265

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables included retention
money receivables of HK$77,874,000 (2015: HK$69,300,000),
which represents approximately 2% to 5% (2015: approximately
2% to 5%) of the relevant contract sum granted to certain
number of the customers in the PRC that has a retention period
of three to five years. As at 31 December 2016, retention money
receivables aged over 365 days amounted to HK$57,932,000
(2015: HK$48,960,000).

The Group's sales are made to several major customers and there
is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and services to
the top five customers constituted approximately 45.4% (2015:
44.4%) of the Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December
2016. They accounted for approximately 47.5% (2015: 37.5%)
of the gross trade receivable balances as at 31 December 2016.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired amounted
to approximately HK$1,243,259,000 (2015: HK$1,050,799,000)
as at 31 December 2016.

RIZ—RE+-A=+—0 BEREZIEE
fEUFEII & 58 77,874,000/ T(ZE— 1 4F :
69,300,000/ ) R THEETEFPHE
AREEN2%E%(ZE—RF : 892%
£5%) MEMHHA=ZZERFE R-ZT—X
F+-A=Z+—8 ERBEHNLERRBE
365 HEV4A%E /457,932,000 8L (—E—H4F
48,960,000 5 7T)

REBRNEENRBELITEREFELRERE
EEdER HE-_T—R"F+-_A=+—
HIEFE HAAEFHENERRREHEDH
REEAEELEERENA54% (ZE—AF
44.4%)  MER—_ZE—X~"E+=-_F=+—8H
MEWRBR R E R B ENLTS% (T —FF
37.5%) °

RIB-—RE+_A=1+—0 BRELHIE
S 1B B JE U 518 491,243,259,00058 T(Z &
—F % 1,050,799,000587T) °
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 BEREREREREE RERHM

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) ALETSEIE)

(a) Trade receivables (continued) (a) FEWERR(E)
As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$63,817,000 RZE—RFEF+_A=+—8" EW
(2015: HK$11,772,000) were past due but not impaired. These 8k 763,817,000 (= & — R F:
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is 11,772,000 70) B @R R FE - BH
no significant financial difficulty and based on past experience, REVTEERUBRBENBLIZFEH
the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis of ERNRELER  aliFmEn] THE - 1%
these trade receivables is as follows: EUER TR R DT T

As at 31 December
R+t=BA=+—H
2016 2015

“E-RE Z—ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET
Up to 90 days 90 HIAR 7,042 7,256
91 to 180 days 91£180H 13,079 1,892
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 34,372 2,624
Over 365 days 365 ANk 9,324 -
63,817 11,772
(b) Bills receivables (b) EWEE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity B 4 e B HAHARS A 758 A LA AR SR 1T &
periods of within six months. HEE
The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as FEBRRSENIHERDT
follows:
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-Rf —T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Up to 90 days 90 HIAR 40,370 84,493
91 to 180 days 912180 H - 114,110
40,370 198,603
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 BEREREEREE RERHM
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) W RIE ()
(c) Provision for impairment of trade receivables () FEWRFURERE
The movement on the provision for impairment of trade EWERFOREREESHNT

20

receivables is as follows:

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—H
2016 2015
“E-RE C—ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FTAT
At beginning of the year REA 3,694 660
Provision for the year (note 7) FREE(HET) 886 3,666
Bad debt written off i sHIZER - (597)
Reversal of provision (note 7) BBEL(MET) (300) -
Exchange difference P 5 =5 (213) (35)
At end of the year RER 4,067 3,694
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RREBSHEENREAEERR A L GHERE
carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned above. The WHBENERAE R E—RNE+_-_F=+—
Group did not hold any collateral as security for these receivables as at B RNEBWEZERWFIES G E(HEE
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). m(ZZE—FRF &)
The other classes within trade and bills receivables, deposits and other EWESNEREE - me K EMEKRZRIERN
receivables do not contain impaired assets. Hi$ERINTEEREEE -
RESTRICTED CASH 20 ZRFBRE
As at 31 December
Rt=—RA=1t—H
2016 2015
—E-RF¥ C—ET-IfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET
Restricted bank deposits SRHRITER 310 8,935
Restricted cash represents bank deposits of the Group which were FREESIEAEEBEARENERESUR
placed as guarantee deposits for tenders and as securities for sales of WEFEEMEEMEROETED  IUA
goods to customers and were denominated in RMB. RUEEHE o
As at 31 December 2016, the effective interest rate on restricted bank RZE-RNE+-A=+—08 ZBEHIET
deposits was 0.35% (2015: 0.35%) per annum. All restricted cash GHHEBERMEAEEE03I%(—E—HE:
were kept in the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC as at 31 035%) R-_E—FHER -T—XE+ 8
December 2015 and 2016, where the remittance of funds is subject to =t—H G EIRHIREFEREFEEANE
foreign exchange control. THYMRTER,  MEBESONER DI

EEH
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21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND 21 RITRFLERE

As at 31 December
R+=-ZA=+—~H
2016 2015
“E-RE C—ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITRF RS 1,997,495 1,873,312
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 209,710 271,000

2,207,205 2,144,312

As at 31 December 2016, funds of the Group amounting to RZE—-—RE+-_A=+—HH' A&
HK$1,365,412,000 (2015: HK$1,038,387,000) were deposited in bank & $11,365,412,000%8 (= T — f F:
accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the remittance of funds 1,038,387,000 7 7T ) 77 MU R BISE MR 1T R 3L
is subject to foreign exchange control. EIRITERE  MBRMESHNNESZISNEEH -
The effective interest rate per annum on short-term bank deposits of AEFBEHRTEFINERENRA10E(Z
the Group was 1.0% (2015: 0.6%) per annum. These deposits have an T—HF:06E) ZEFZNFEHENEBE A
average maturity of 90 days (2015: 91 days). HB(ZZE—HF :91H) -

The carrying amounts of cash at bank and on hand were denominated RARF EHESNEEED JIA N EEHE

in the following currencies:

As at 31 December
R+=RA=+-—H
2016 2015
“E-RE C—ZT—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET
HK$ BT 721,455 849,040
RMB AR 1,356,454 1,028,964
us$ ET 103,353 246,373
EUR BT 25,333 19,935
Others Hitb 610 -

2,207,205 2,144,312

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group as at 31 December RZFE—R"EF+ZA=+—0 *EBHEKE
2016 were HK$2,207,143,000 (2015: HK$2,144,207,000). &R A2,207,143,00008 T(Z B — | &

2,144,207,000 % 7T) ©
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 B
Number of Ordinary
ordinary shares of
shares  HK$0.1each
BREE
0.187TH
Rk EBRRHE
Thousand
shares HK$ 000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid ERTRBEEER TR FHET
1 January 2016 e 1,112,014 111,201
Shares repurchased during the year FARN B (10,000) (1,000)
Employee share option scheme: EERERE A
— Proceeds from shares issued (note 23) — BT PSR (KT sE 23) 5,860 586
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—RF+ZA=+—H 1,107,874 110,787
1 January 2015 —T-hH5—H—H 1,100,814 110,081
Employee share option scheme: EEBREE
— Proceeds from shares issued (note 23) — BT TS FE (M RE 23) 11,200 1,120
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=-A=+—H 1,112,014 111,201

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 10,000,000
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate purchase
consideration (including expenses) of HK$52,809,000. Such
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled during the year.
Details of the ordinary shares repurchased on the Stock Exchange
during the year are as follows:-

FR - ARFNBRE(RER) 52,809,000
BT ER AR A 10,000,000 A% @A o
ZEBOBROEERENEE FAEBEM
BREIKEEEFENT

Number of Highest Lowest
ordinary purchase purchase
shares price per price per
repurchased ordinary ordinary
(Thousand shares shares
Shares) (HKS) (HKS$)

BREBR SREBER
BEEZER NERSREE NREREE

Month of repurchase WBE A5 HA(Tk) (&) ()
September 2016 ZE-RENA 5,000 5.91 5.78
November 2016 ZE-RE+—A 5,000 4.77 4.46

As a result of the above share repurchases, the issued share capital
of the Company was reduced by the par value of the aforesaid
repurchased ordinary shares. As at the date of these financial
statements, the number of issued shares of the Company is
1,107,874,000 ordinary shares.

The directors believe that the above share repurchases are in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such share
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the net assets value per
share and/or earnings per share of the Company.

MR LA HEDR KRB ETRA
LiliEDNWERROMERERD - R
EMBKHREE KRRABBHTRGHEE
1,107,874,000 f% & @AY °

P

aF R &

EERR LABROBLOTAARARERRE
HREMNE > MxRDBEGERARFANE
BREEFER RGREFIEM -
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23 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

23 BRESE

(a) Share option scheme (a) BEERESTE
On 1 December 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company RZE—ZF+=A—HB ARAESFE
approved a share option scheme (the “Scheme"”) for the issuance o —TEEE AT B ([ 25T 8 ) 1T A
of in aggregate no more than 10% in nominal amount of the HETBBARDFN LT ABDETROE
aggregate of shares in issue on the listing date of the Company, EER 10% + B1100,000,000 i % 15 (18
representing 100,000,000 shares (subject to the terms of the BRBZITENGRRET EMARNNE
scheme and the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules). BHRE) °
The purpose of the Scheme is to reward participants who have Zit el E R B LB GHAREEL
contributed or will contribute to the Group and to encourage BERMSHE  UEB2EEARARAR
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the HBRRABENZ  BARARAARE
Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and its i EIEE -
shareholders as a whole.
The Scheme became effective on 1 December 2010 and unless ZHERZE-TE+A-BAER K
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid and effective FRITHIENIER] - BAIZEEIEZA
for the period of 10 years from that date. RIOFHHE—EB™ -
(b) Share option movements (b) HEBREMNERS
Number of Number of
Share Options Share Options
held as at held as at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
RZB-~E Granted Exercised Lapsed RZE-X%
Exercised -A-H during during duing T=A=t-H
Name Date of grant price Frsm the year the year the year Frfem
2] RHBH it BREHE ERRE ERfTE ERX%  BREHE
(HKS)
(&)
Employees
B8
(In aggregate) 22 June 2012* 1.230 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
(£51) R CERA-TIRY
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 18,134,000 - (5,860,000) - 12,274,000
(&) “E-EERAZTNA*
Total for Employees 24,134,000 - (5,860,000) - 18,274,000
B2
Consultants
BR
(I aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 1,580,000 - - - 1,580,000
(&) “E-MERA-TN\B*
Total for Consultants 1,580,000 - - - 1,580,000
B
Total 25,714,000 - (5,860,000) - 19,854,000
2y
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23 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

23 BEREE ()

(b) Share option movements (continued) (b) EBRENEE (8)
Number of Number of
Share Options Share Options
held as at held as at
1 January 31 December
2015 2015
RZT-1F Granted Exercised lapsed HZF-1F
Exercised —A-H during during duing +=F=+-F
Name Date of grant price FrisH the year the year the year FHsH
i FHAH ke BREHE EREL ERfI ERxy BREHE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors
Ex
Nie Guoming 22 June 2012* 1.230 - - - - -
HEH ZE-CERAZTIAA
LuJie 22 June 2012* 1.230 - - - - -
ER ZE-CERAZTZAx
Li Wenjin 22 June 2012* 1.230 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
ZNE Stk 19 ks g =
Total for Directors 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
EEE
Employees
[E8
(I aggregate) 22 June 2012* 1.230 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
(#51) ZE3-CERRZTZRY
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 19,274,000 - (1,140,000) - 18,134,000
(#3t) “E-RFRAZTNA*
Total for Employees 25,274,000 - (1,140,000) - 24,134,000
B8t
Consultants
B
(In aggregate) 28 May 2014* 4.860 1,640,000 - (60,000) - 1,580,000
(&) “R-EERAZFNA*
Total for Consultants 1,640,000 - (60,000) - 1,580,000
BEg
Total 36,914,000 - (11,200,000) - 25,714,000
L
* The share options will be vested to the grantees, among which 30% * BRERBEEA - EP30%ERER

of the share options would be vested on the date of grant, a further
30% of the share options be vested on the first anniversary of the date
of grant and the remaining 40% of the share options will be vested
on the second anniversary of the date of grant. The validity period of
these share options shall be 5 years from the date of grant.

REPHHERE  5I30%BREMNE
HEM—BERE - Hir40%BRER
REHABRRBERE - ZEBRED
ARARER L ASRERF -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share option movements (continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

23 EBREHE ()

MARTTENBREHE AR INEFY
I T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-BHLEE

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZT—-hF
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)
BEREN GERRER
BTy BRE BT Bkt
TEE (F14) 1TE(E (F4)
At 1 January n—A—H 4.013 25,714 3.287 36,914
Exercised B17fF 1.230 - 1.230 (10,000)
Exercised B17fF 4.860 (5,860) 4.860 (1,200)
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 3.763 19,854 4.013 25,714
On 22 June 2012, 80,400,000 share options were granted to N E—-—ZFXA=-+=
certain directors and employees at an exercise price of HK$1.23 80,400,000 BE R #EIRITHEE 1 23
per share. These options will expire on 21 June 2017. BIETFETESRES - %5 % R 18
RZE—tFAAZ+—HER
On 28 May 2014, 22,254,000 share options were granted R—_FE—-—WOMERA=-+ N\ B

to certain employees and consultants at an exercise price of
HK$4.86 per share. These options will expire on 27 May 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, share based
payment expense of HK$3,803,000 (2015: HK$14,690,000) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement and the same
amount was credited in equity. The weighted average share
price immediately before the share options exercised dates was
HK$7.16 (2015: HK$8.95) per share. As at 31 December 2016,
out of the 19,854,000 (2015: 25,714,000) outstanding options,
19,854,000 (2015: 16,812,400) options were exercisable.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2016

22,254,00017 BE PR #E LATT R B B 1% 4.86
BLIETETEES MER - 2SBRIES
RZE-hFERA-++BEH

REBE *%*/‘T¢+*ﬂ_+*5u:
FE REARERBABRNINTE
A /%3,803,0007% 71:(_ T — 0 F:

14,690,000/ 7T ) & [A # BUsE 2 5T A IR
o BRBRETEL BN METES
REAERTI6BTL(ZE—HF 895
BIL) c RZE—ARF+ZA=+—8H"
19,854,00013 (ZE— R4 : 25,714,000
7 ) 1" AR 17 68 B8 B A+ 19,854,000 11
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23 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(o)

Fair value of share options

The directors of the Company have used the Binomial Model to
determine the fair value of the options granted on 28 May 2014,
which is to be expensed over the vesting period. Significant
judgement on parameters, such as risk free rate, dividend yield
and expected volatility at the grant date, is required to be made
by the directors in applying the Binomial Model, which are
summarised as below.

23 BEREE ()

() BRENATE
ARBEECFER-BABRNEERZ
Z-NERA-TN\HEETFHERER
TE EREBHESM - 28 (RE
AR FIE - BB R R TR
B EEEEEAEABAELEEY
b BT .

Fair value of share option at date of grant RETHBERENATE HK$1.995/87C
Weighted average share price at the grant date AT B BRI TR (E HK$4.8607% 7T
Risk free rate EmERAX 1.152%
Dividend yield g S e & -
Expected volatility (note (i) TE R B (BT 5E () 53.38%

note (i) The expected volatility, measured as the standard deviation of daily
trading price volatility of the shares of comparable companies over 5
years.

See note 10 for the total expenses recognised in the consolidated
income statement for share options granted to employees.

ML) - REUR DR RFEAT L RARRNERR
HERRGNREZHE -

ARME 10X TR EMBRERR

BRGAE -
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24 RESERVES 24 B
Capital Share
Share reserve option  Exchange Retained
premium (note (i) reserve reserve earnings Total
BEXRRE
ROEE  (WEG) BRERE  HNERE  REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TER THER THT THT
For the year ended BE-Z-RE
31 December 2016 +=ZA=t+-H
LEE
Balance at RZZE—RE
1 January 2016 —A—HmEH 1,323,439 (414,978) 77,370 (37,096) 2,017,638 2,966,373
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 600,908 600,908
Other comprehensive loss ~ Htt2E#E %
Exchange differences arising ~ BE 8/ NIB A F)
on translation of the RBRREEN
financial statements of BHESE
foreign subsidiaries - - - (125,374) - (125,374)
Total comprehensive income 2 E YA - - - (125374) 600,908 475,534
Transaction with owners ~ EEEANR S
Repurchase of the Company's ~ [BIEE KA &] KRR {7
shares (51,809) - - - - (51,809)
Share option scheme BRE
- value of services provided - BRERENER - - 3,803 - - 3,803
— share options exercised - BT RERE 27,894 - - - - 27,894
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - (67,047) (67,047)
Total transaction with owners B A ARX 525 (23,915) - 3,803 - (67,047) (87,159)
Balance at RZE—REF
31 December 2016 +-A=+—H
HREER 1,299,524 (414,978) 81,173 (162,470) 2,551,499 3,354,748
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24 RESERVES (continued) 24 f#HEE)

Capital Share
Share reserve option  Exchange Retained
premium (note (i) reserve reserve earnings Total
BEXRE
RGEE  (WEG) BRERE HNERE REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TER THER THT THT
For the year ended BE-Z-1f
31 December 2015 +=ZA=t+-H
LEE
Balance at R-Z—hE
1 January 2015 —A—HmEH 1,306,427 (414,978) 62,680 64,839 1,419,131 2,438,099
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 620,736 620,736
Other comprehensive loss ~ Htt2E#E %
Exchange differences arising ~ BE 8/ NIB A F)
on translation of the RHBRRELEN
financial statements of R
foreign subsidiaries - - - (101,935) - (101,935)
Total comprehensive income 2 E Nz - - - (101,935) 620,736 518,801
Transaction with owners ~ BEEBANR 53
Share option scheme BRE
- value of services provided - BRERENER - - 14,690 - - 14,690
— share options exercised - BT RERE 17,012 - - - - 17,012
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - (22,229) (22,229)
Total transaction with owners ~ H1#EH AN 5878 17,012 - 14,690 - (22,229) 9,473
Balance at RZZE—hE
31 December 2015 +-A=+—H
48R 1,323,439 (414,978) 77,370 (37,096) 2,017,638 2,966,373
BERHEBERAR ZB-XNEER
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24 RESERVES (continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
consideration for the acquisitions upon the reorganisation completed on 15
February 2010; and (i) the aggregate of the share capital and share premium

of the direct owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Statutory reserves

The subsidiary of the Company in the PRC is required to allocate 10% of the
company's net profit to the statutory reserves fund until such fund reaches
50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserves fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or
to increase its registered capital, provided that such fund is maintained at a
minimum of 25% of its registered capital. As at 31 December 2016, retained
earnings comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to HK$125,275,000
(2015: HK$124,972,000).

25 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

(ii)

24 B

B

BRRE

BARBETIIMENZR (N _T-FF=
ATHETRERAROREREEE  REOER
AIERIA MO R RO RS R B (i B AR o

EERB

ARARRFENOMBARASGARALFE10%
PEEETHRES  EERRAESEZAIM
BEARM50% - KEBERILER  EEHES
ARAREHEZTEEREMEARER - 2
EREEREAESNEFMER25%MKTE
R-Z—RE+-_A=+—8 RBEFNEE
AEREBE125,275,0008 T (ZT—RE:
124,972,00087T) °

25 BEAERR - HEEMRRRER K

ACCRUALS i}
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—B-RE C—T-1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Trade payables FERTBRER 649,271 702,765
Amount due to a related party (note 31(b)) e — & B 5 FOR (M RE 31(b)) 13,214 7,764
662,485 710,529
Other payables and accruals Hith JEFBR 7R e FEET RUIB
Receipt in advance from customers BRMEEF B 89,327 51,897
Other tax payables Hofth FE R B K 99,488 62,560
Other accrued expenses and payables Hth FEATF 2 R ERSK 37,976 116,899
226,791 231,356
889,276 941,885
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25 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 25 MEERF  HENERRET
ACCRUALS (continued)

@)

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

5 (®)

(a)

ENEROREIMTMAT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—-H
2016 2015
—E-RE C—T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
Up to 90 days 90 A LAR 567,613 636,974
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 92,649 71,509
181 to 365 days 181 HZ365H - 33
Over 365 days 3658 M F 2,223 2,013
662,485 710,529

The average credit period granted by the Group's suppliers
ranges from 0 to 180 days.

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

@)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2016, the Group has unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to
HK$88,563,000 (2015: HK$96,434,000). Tax losses amounting
to HK$88,386,000 (2015: HK$94,406,000) will expire from
2028 to 2035. The remaining tax losses have no expiry date. The
potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax losses
which have not been recognised will be calculated based on the
effective income tax rates according to prevailing tax laws and
regulations in which the Group operates.

Cai Shui 2008 Circular 1, which was jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, took effect
on 22 February 2008. Under the circular, dividends declared by
foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs”) to foreign investors out of
their cumulative retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 shall
be exempt from withholding income tax. For dividends declared
out of profit earned after 1 January 2008, withholding income
tax will be levied on the foreign investor at a tax rate of 10%
unless the foreign investor's jurisdiction of incorporation has a
tax treaty with the PRC that provides for a different withholding
tax arrangement.

AEBBEHERRTOIHEERNTO
£180H -

26 EZEFTISH

(a)

BERRMEARAT

RIEFGHEEDEERBENENZS
A EBRARERVENERMBAME
BONEBEERR - R — "%
+ZA=+—H AEENRERHE
/& 18 488,563,000 T(Z T — R F:
96,434,000 70) - ATEEEAKE A B IE
SR o 1t 7 I8 5 18 5 £088,386,000
BIL(ZZE— TR F 94,406,000 7T ) &
RIZE-N\FE-_E=REEH - TN
BMBEELBEEE - MABRRNZER
EERBNBEELCHESREESREASE
ELEERNERMERERERERMN
BEARBEOIETE -

HERBEERBEBBEAE LM
2008 B 1S BAR_EENF A
THZHER - REZAEN  SNEHRED
E((WNEGENDBEE-_TTLF+TA
T+ —HNEHREBFMEIMEEES
RE PR E S EA RAMTENER - B=F
TNF—A—BERMBRRER SR
BB BIE10% M REEIMEEEHR
WIBIFTSHE - BRIEBIMEE B MR
B RDEREE ER BT ARBELY - HED
R TEMB L HE -
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27

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 26 EELERBH (#)
As at 31 December 2016, deferred income tax liabilities have not NZEBE—RNE+_A=+—0 gaRAEFH
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect BHBOEREENRELEREZEIETE
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted earnings PAT] R AR SRBEE - 8 i) R gt A8 5 (B o P R B )
of the PRC subsidiary of the Group amounting to approximately P2 RIRE B F ) BT T N R & B 3R
HK$94,226,000 (2015: HK$61,308,000), as the Group is able to REHELEFBH A EREL94,226,000/5 7T
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and (ZZ—A%F : 61,308,000/87T) °
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 27 REFMBHES
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (a) BREISHAIGFELEFRBRESN
generated from operations ¥R
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-HLEE
2016 2015
ZE-R"E CZT-I1fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET
Profit before income tax B FTS BT m A 678,299 657,973
Adjustment for: HE
Interest income (note 5) FBUA (F7ES) (15,005) (19,833)
Finance costs (note 9) FRERHE) 10,794 -
Depreciation of property, mE - BEK
plant and equipment (note 7) T E (ME7) 7,155 4,560
Amortisation of leasehold land (note 7) FAE T (FIaE7) 5 6
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 7) B EESHE(PIET) 3,224 438
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  BEX
plant and equipment HEEEE 117 -
Share-based payments PARR () A BT =2 5 3,803 14,690
Provision for impairment of receivables, net JREE L R T e 4 AR (BT 5 19(0))
(note 19(c)) 586 3,666
(Reversal of provision)/provision for obsolete REFE(BERRD),BE
inventories (note 18) (PFEE18) (17,983) 39,492
670,995 700,992
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Increase in trade and bills receivables, RUBRFRERERE - &
deposits and other receivables Ko EL A Wi SR TR E (183,707) (466,035)
Increase in inventories FEIENM (97,653) (154,855)
Decrease in restricted cash IR HIR SR/ 8,489 6,547
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, ERTERIR - EMb A ERR
other payables and accruals RIERTHRIE R D), /12 m (41,412) 299,446
Cash generated from operations KEMBES 356,712 386,095
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27 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued) 27 REMBHNERE B)
(b) In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds (b) REGERERERTD  HEWE -
from sale of property, plant and equipment BEREZENMESRIBERSE
comprise:

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEE
2016 2015
—E-RE Z—ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FAT
Net book amount EEFE 117 -
Loss on disposals of property, HEWME - BER
plant and equipment FEHOEE (117) -
Proceeds from sales of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment FABR TSR - -
28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28 HAAE
As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the Group had no contingent RZE-—RAFRER=_E-—R"F+A=+—8"
liabilities. AREYVELARALE -
29 COMMITMENTS 29 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEE
On 28 December 2016, Pax Technology Limited, a wholly owned RZZE—WNE+=ZANB ARFAIZE
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition and MEARBERHEARADRIECSC Htalia
subscription agreement with CSC Italia S.r.l. (“CSC") and its Srl ([CSCH REMBRR L - KHR 2
existing quotaholders to acquire a total of 60% of the corporate X 18 3,000,000 B 7t (48 & # 25,705,000
capital in CSC (the “Acquisition”). The consideration payable BT UREECSC 60% AR E ([ KBS
arising from the Acquisition approximates EUR 3,000,000 H]) - BILBETAGAMBHREA - WE
(equivalent to approximately HK$25,705,000). As at the date FIEAPNE TR W ARERK - Bk
on which these consolidated financial statements were issued, EEERATTK

certain conditions precedent have not been fulfilled, the
Acquisition has not been completed.
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29 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of certain office premises as follows:

29

EE 8

(b) &EHEEEE

RZE—RNF+-A=+—0 £&EER
BETHAENENTAIRELCZHER
YRR RFER S REREMT -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—B-Af —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Not later than one year NHEB—F 23,460 11,561
Later than one year and not later than five years B —FENBBAF 24,225 11,292
47,685 22,853

30 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

148

()

Pursuant to an agreement signed between Pax Technology
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company ("Pax
Technology”) and the then shareholders of Nanchang Kashuo
Information Technology Company Limited (“Nanchang
Kashuo”), Pax Technology acquired a 51% equity interest in
Nanchang Kashuo through a wholly owned subsidiary, Shanghai
Kashuo at a consideration in the forms of (i) cash amounted to
RMB14,310,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,096,000)
paid to the original shareholders of Nanchang Kashuo, (ii) a
capital injection of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$35,843,000) to Shanghai Kashuo, and (iii) a consideration
payable of RMB1,354,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,618,000) to the original shareholders of Nanchang
Kashuo. Upon the completion of the acquisition on 22 March
2016, Nanchang Kashuo became a wholly owned subsidiary
of Shanghai Kashuo, and the Group's equity interest in the
subsidiary, Shanghai Kashuo, was reduced from 100% to 51%.
Acquisition-related costs of HK$182,000 have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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30 ¥XKE6t

(a)

REARRZENBRARIEEREAR
RE[EERE]) EE S FiiE B8R
ERRAR(BEERRDBEMRIZH
Z AEREERZENBARLER
FHUWBEEERHS1%MRAER  URE
BT ARAIA :()AEEFHEBEKRE
R4 AR 14,310,000 7T (HHE R4
17,096,00087T) - (ii) A /8 REFE A
R #30,000,000 7T (48 & 7 35,843,000
BLIR(NAEE RS ERRESRE
AR 1,354,000 7T (FHE 7 471,618,000
BIL) M- AFEZA-FT-HEK
WEE% - mERSRALERHZZENR
BRR BASERNBAR EERHZ
BAEZAI100% P ES1% - WEE
T 7 BB AR 182,000 8 TRt ABE =
E-RF+Z A=+ BLFERAKE
KAMTHER -
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

()

(continued)

The provisional fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the consideration paid and the carrying value of non- HEER

30 ¥BES6tE)

(@) (&)

TREANKERHBAEEAERR
FE - BXNRERHERER

controlling interest at the acquisition date are summarised in the HIAREE -
table below:
HK$'000
TR
Consideration RE
Cash paid ERRE 52,939
Consideration payable ERRE 1,618
54,557
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BATBAIEER
acquired and liabilities assumed REBENCRIALE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) mE - BEREEPNTE 14) 992
Intangible assets - contractual customer relationships BREE-AHNEPBR
and others (Note 15) R E A (BHEE15) 20,012
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEIHERE 2,076
Inventories & 1,349
Trade receivables U BR FX 4,603
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEE&EEY 36,806
Trade payables JESBRFR (3,515)
Other payables and accruals Hib SRR BT ZUE (36,855)
Deferred income tax liabilities ERFAEHAE (5,003)
Total identifiable net assets AR EE AR 20,465
Non-controlling interests IR (10,027)
Goodwill (Note 15) B (M 15) 44,119
54,557
Cash consideration paid BERRERE 52,939
Less: prepayment for the acquisition paid in 2015 B RZE-REENREENK (15,012)
cash and cash equivalents acquired BARSIRESZFED (36,806)
Net cash outflow on acquisition for the year FRMERSRL #5 1,121
Acquisition-related costs included FAFAFERABERANTRER
in administrative expenses in the consolidated income B i B AR B A AR
statement for the year 182

The goodwill is attributable to a number of factors, amongst
others, to the synergies expected to arise after the Group's
acquisition of this subsidiary. None of the goodwill recognised is

expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

AEDNBEEANSERE - (HFERE)RA
KBTI E L AR IERRELNRF
WIE - BAAGHME - BHMERNEE

MAEEIA -

BERRMEARAT
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

150

()

(continued)

The fair value of trade receivables is HK$4,603,000. The gross
contractual amount for trade receivables due is HK$4,603,000,
all of which is expected to be collectible.

The fair value of the acquired identifiable assets was provisional
pending receipt of the final valuations of those assets. Deferred
income tax liabilities of HK$5,003,000 have been provided in
relation to the fair value adjustments.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement
since 22 March 2016 contributed by Nanchang Kashuo and
its subsidiaries was HK$123,576,000. They had net profit of
HK$12,259,000 over the same period.

Had Nanchang Kashuo and its subsidiaries been consolidated
from 1 January 2016, the consolidated income statement would
show pro-forma revenue of HK$2,919,725,000 and profit of
HK$597,514,000.

Pursuant to an agreement signed between Wonder Pax, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group and the shareholders of Suzhou
leasy, Wonder Pax acquired a 60% equity interest in Suzhou
leasy at a consideration of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$33,220,000). The acquisition was completed
on 5 February 2016. Acquisition-related costs of HK$121,000
have been charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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30 ¥¥&86t)

(a)

(%)

JEUWBR SRE) A FE A 4,603,000 7T © 3
HEKRFNEE 4273 54,603,000%
TC o FEEE I AT e o

BN T B AEN D FEALE -
FRELSAENRBIEER  HTE
% - JEAEFTI358 5 5,003,000 7L 2 3
ISTELSES TR

BE-Z—R"F=-A-+_H#E mMEFRHR
REMB AR ERW A AGZE WER O
A£123,576,0008 7T  HERRHILEF
#£12,259,0008 7T °

HMEERHEREMBRARE T —RF—
A—BREEHAR  BGRAkaRE
25EE WA 2,919,725,000 5 7T M3 F
597,514,000 8 7T °

BEASBE2EWNBRARBEERERSK
MANTHBREETNRE BEEBE
AR B A K% 30,000,000 7T (1 & R4
33,220,000 7T ) Y BE &R I A11T 2 B9 60%
Bt - WEEBEBRN-_T—~"E_-_AHB%
X o WBEARREAC AR 121,000 L E A AE
EoE-RE+ZA=t-BIFENEG
BURERNNHITHER -
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

30 ¥BES6tE)

(continued) (b) (&)
The provisional fair values of assets acquired and liabilities TEREANKERRBAEERXERRE
assumed, the consideration paid and the carrying value of non- MEERAFE BXHRERIFERER
controlling interest at the acquisition date are summarised in the HIAREE -
table below:
HK$'000
THER
Consideration RE
Cash paid BERRE 17,756
Consideration payable JERHKE 15,464
33,220
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BATHNEERAREE
acquired and liabilities assumed MERRELE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) WE - BE KR (M 14) 123
Intangible assets - contractual customer relationships BVAE-GHNEFPHF
and others (Note 15) R EA(PFE15) 2,190
Deferred income tax assets EIEFSHERE 1,307
Inventories 78 39
Trade receivables FEUSBR X 1,648
Deposits and other receivables B R E AR 26,778
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkR&EEY 1,468
Trade payables JEFTERRR (60)
Other payables and accruals HA R BR R B Rt IR (5,436)
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFEHERE (547)
Total identifiable net assets A BRI EEHE R 27,510
Non-controlling interests ks (11,004)
Goodwill (Note 15) BE(HE15) 16,714
33,220
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 17,756
Less: prepayment for the acquisition paid in 2015 B RZE-RFENKEERNR (6,963)
cash and cash equivalents acquired BARERRESEY (1,468)
Net cash outflow on acquisition for the year FAWER ST FE 9,325
Acquisition-related costs included SFAFAFESGRE ERATHRER
in administrative expenses in the consolidated B i B AR B B AR
income statement for the year 121
The goodwill is attributable to a number of factors, amongst BEDEARZERZ - (HReE)RAK
others, the synergies expected to arise after the Group's SEWKELHEAREEREEENTR
acquisition of this subsidiary. None of the goodwill recognised is BIE - BAEHIME - BHMRERNEE

expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

BRI -
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The fair value of trade receivables is HK$1,648,000. The gross
contractual amount for trade receivables due is HK$1,648,000,
all of which is expected to be collectible.

The fair value of the acquired identifiable assets was provisional
pending receipt of the final valuations of those assets. Deferred
income tax liabilities of HK$547,000 have been provided in
relation to the fair value adjustments.

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since
5 February 2016 contributed by Suzhou leasy was HK$1,525,000.
Suzhou leasy suffered a loss of HK$9,451,000 over the same
period.

Had Suzhou leasy been consolidated from 1 January 2016, the
consolidated income statement would show pro-forma revenue
of HK$2,914,854,000 and profit of HK$599,377,000.

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly or
indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.

(a) Transactions with related parties

152

Except for those disclosed below, the Group has no significant
transactions with related parties during the year. All the related
party transactions disclosed below were also either connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the Company had made
disclosure in relation to these transactions when required under
the Listing Rules.

30 XSGt

31

by (&)

FEUBR A A A A 1,648,000 87T © 3
HEBBRFNEE 4235 1,648,000%8
7T 0 TREEE e o

BB EENAFEREE N -
FRIAZFEENRRGEER  TAE
E - BEMEHAES47,0008TERA
FERETRRE -

BT R"E-_ARBE  HMNANTHE
BRI AR & W= KA WA B 1,525,000
BT o BN AT S AR HEE 18 9,451,000
BT

WEEMHMITHE —E— A F—A—HED
BHAR  ARAKEREZIIEZSHA
2,914,854,000 % 7T } )& # 599,377,000
BT

BEBAIRS

W—BALBENERLRREHEMALR
EEMALFLMBRELRREEEBINE
AEE AZALRA/TZREMALHH
By o

(a) EBEBAIHNXS
BRSO E SN - AR B 7 2 R
HYEEAERRS ° B FXREANH
BH X5 TR ETRAE 14AE M E B
EZXHEFHBEERHRARFERE L
MARARERZFLAELIRE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E-Rf ZT-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Sales of electronic payment products to A= EEHL (R E) AR A A
subsidiaries of Hi Sun Technology (China) (I&& DB AaE
Limited (“Hi Sun”)* (note (i)) HEE TR EmR (B G) 134,889 148,505
Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of B Rn VNS FEEitkn
Hi Sun (note (ii)) GEAD) 1,505 1,604
Purchase of raw materials from a subsidiary of EFS1E Lokl L= NS
Hi Sun (notes (iii)) FE B RAEE (R 3R Giii)) 31,726 39,061
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties (continued)

* The Company is an associate of Hi Sun whose shares are listed on the

Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

note (i):

note (ii):

note (iii):

The sales of electronic payment products to subsidiaries of Hi Sun
were transacted pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in
the framework agreement entered into by the Company and the
relevant party on 19 December 2012. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement have been renewed on 31 December
2015.

Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun was charged at a fixed
monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties. These
transactions were de minimis continuing connected transactions
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Purchase of raw materials from a subsidiary of Hi Sun was
conducted pursuant to terms and conditions set out in the
framework agreement entered into by the Company and the
relevant party on 31 December 2013. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement have been renewed on 30 December
2016.

Balances with related parties
The balances with the subsidiaries of Hi Sun are unsecured,
interest free and with a credit period of 60 days.

31

BEBAITRS

(a) EBEBEBANRSZ(E)
* AREABGMBEAR - ERNMNE
RFFERLT °

PREG) -

P (i) -

EE{D)

(b)

AT
ZERG

B AW

MEGEORBRARHEEFINE
REARRRBETR T ——F
T Z A+ LB AT SR 2R 155 3 P L
EHRREETRS - ZERGZ
RBGEREGHEER T — 0%
TZA=t—HEH-

mEEa—EREARANES
SRARETERRER  AITHES
HAME - ZEXHAHLETHA
FUAEBTHEEREFEBER
5 BeETHER FEEH A
ERBIUBRI AT

= 5 6 — R 8 2 R B B R A 8
RARREEBIR -_T—=F
TZAZH—HANNERBEM
G RAGIET - ZERBEM
BERREHER -T-RF+=
A=+REH-

ERRARE T VAR R

BB A RN EGARER - %
60 BHZEH -

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2016 2015
—E-RF ZT—0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due from subsidiaries of Hi Sun JE U = B3 B /8 7 B R 3B 65,196 70,912
Amount due to a subsidiary of Hi Sun FE = 85— B A R FIE 13,214 7,764
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31 BEARS
() Key management compensation () FEEEEMS
Details of key management compensation during the year have TEEBRERNANEENMEF BN
been disclosed in note 33. 33HE -
32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 32 ARFEEEBRRRAEED

OF THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company AAREEEER
As at 31 December
R+t=BA=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XE ZE—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBR AR E 592,344 588,959
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 592,344 588,959
Current assets REEE
Deposits and other receivables e REMEKIE 473 591
Amount due from a subsidiary JEU— BB A BlFkIA 253,694 119,578
Cash at bank and on hand FIRFLERS 696,976 837,879
Total current assets REEELE 951,143 958,048
Total assets BEEAE 1,543,487 1,547,007
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company RARFHEAELER
Share capital %N 110,787 111,201
Reserves i (@) 1,423,770 1,426,321
Total equity RSB 1,534,557 1,537,522
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 32 AREEEEBREREEZT B
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) AAREEEBERE)
As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—H
2016 2015
“E-RE C—ZT—1F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TERT FET
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals H A T AR SR % FE 5 R 8,930 9,485
Total current liabilities and total liabilities FEAEEEREEHLE 8,930 9,485
Total equity and liabilities Bk ABAE 1,543,487 1,547,007
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of AAREEEBBRN-ZZ—+tF=A/\HEZE
Directors on 8 March 2017 and was signed on its behalf FelitE THTINESREEE
NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
=E A EXE
Director Director
EF EZE
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

156

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Company

32 APREEEBERERRBEEE®)

(a) ARRREEH

Retained
Share earnings/
Share option  (Accumulated
premium reserve loss) Total
REBF/
RO EE BRERE (RFTEE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TER TER TER TER
Balance at 1 January 2016 RIE-RE
—R—-ANEe 1,323,439 71,370 25,512 1,426,321
Profit for the year FEaA - - 84,608 84,608
Repurchase of the Company's shares [l & <2 A1 AR 7 (51,809) - - (51,809)
Share option scheme B3
—value of services provided -BRERENERE - 3,803 - 3,803
— share options exercised -BiThERE 27,89 - - 27,894
Dividends paid BERBRE - - (67,047) (67,047)
Total transaction with owners HBEFANR 5 BE (23,915) 3,803 17,561 (2,551)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZB-—RE
+ZA=+-AMEs 1,299,524 81,173 43,073 1,423,770
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-Z-1%F
—R—BW&& 1,306,427 62,680 (35,711) 1,333,396
Profit for the year FEEF - - 83,452 83,452
Share option scheme BRE A
—value of services provided -BRERBNEE - 14,690 - 14,690
— share options exercised -BiT{E R 17,012 - - 17,012
Dividends paid ERARE - - (22,229) (22,229)
Total transaction with owners HEBANR B8 17,012 14,690 61,223 92,925
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-E-1%§
TZR=+t—-AHEH 1,323,439 77,370 25,512 1,426,321
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EEFIRRER(FBLATGHRL(E
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 622F)5%383F - AEI(HEES
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE MRERBRE(F622GE) REE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF EFTHRABAENEE)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments () ESRTHRERMS
The remuneration of every Director and the chief executive of the FRN - ARRIEESE RITRARNFTHE
Company during the year is set out below: BT

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HECE-RETCAZT-RLER
Emoluments paid o receivable in respect of a person's services as a irector,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HEABRES(Fast ) TRAMRLTRE AR HGRANAE
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management
Etimated ~ Employers  recevable  oftheaffairs

moneyvalue  contribution in respect of of the
of other toa accepting — Company or
Ditretionary Housing henefits ~ retirement office it subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses ~~~ allowance (Note(a)) benefitscheme ~ asdirector  undertaking Total
JEEEE
LG
HELARE
Eferigh fRiEE  ZENE
[HENEE  EINES  BESND RN
i B¢ BERL BEH (HR@) BRAHdR  BUEN  BUAS it

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'200 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'200 HKS'000

Name #4 TE7 TE7 7 147 TE7 TE7 T#7 147 TE7

Executive Directors §iEE

N Guoing,Caimar) L 1000 826 230 - - ) - - 4161

Lulie (Chif Becutie ey BN 90 129 331 - - ] - - 5467

LiWenjn 5NE 80 - 230 - - 1 - - 3118
270 1 781 % 12,706

Independent Non-Erecutive Directors ~~ BLA 8783

Yip Wi Ming et 152 - ] - - - . - n
W Min 2 1 - 0 - - - - - n
Man Kviok Kuen, Charls e 162 - 1 - - - - - i3]
Total & g i) 846

318 1 8191 B 13502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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33

158

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(continued)

33 EERNERED(FEQARERH(

622%)5%3838 - AF(H
FRER)RE(E622GE)

EHRARENRE) (@)

(a) EFERTHARME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
§3-5-RETCATT-RLER
Emoluments paid or receiable nrespect of & person's senices as & drectr,
whether o the Company or i subsdiary undertaking
HEAEFEZ(MARALALANBRRER B R NME

%
k&R

Emoluments
paid or
Teceiieble
Inrespect of
drectors
ather sences
n connection
Remunerations with the
wdor management
Estimated Employer's recelabe  ofteaffas
moneyvate  confrbuton i respectof of e
ofoter foa accepting — Companyor
Discretonary Housing tenefts refrement office — issubsidary
fees Selary bonuses dlowance (Note g~ beneftscheme asdiecor  undertsking Totel
HEEER
LIPS
HELTER
LAl §E%EE  EANAL
Wre¥BE  EXaEn  EARE RN
ki ¥ i RERH (M) EREEES FHEH R )
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 K 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Name #4 Tin Tin Tin i Tin in i Tin Tin
Bxecutive Directors i ES
N Guoing Caiman) "R 25 1,000 79 210 3 403%
Lule (Chéf ecutie Ofey) ENes) 0 118 BN ) 5865
Li i 8 a0 - 20 18 308
2700 1947 8137 13 12919
Independent Non-Erecutive Directors B A87E3
YipWei Ming et n 0 m
Wy Min L 0 100 00
Man Kok Kuen, Charls XE# 1 10 W
Total it 360 30 660
3060 1947 8437 13 13579
Note (a):  Other benefits include leave pay, share options and insurance fitt(a): EMMZRELEHER  BRERR

premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such

directors

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors (2015: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company's business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2015: Nil).

33 EENERER(FRARRD(E
622%)563838 - RE(REES
MEERRE(F622GE)REH
EHRARENRE) (@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

BERRMEARAT

ESRNERN
FN - BEEFCRRSEBUREERRIK
BM(ZT—0F: &)

ESRIERER
FR - BBEESC RIS RREMRZLE
EREEN(ZF-0F: E)-

BEHESREAE=FRENNK

&
BE_T—R"F+A=+—HILFE "
ARAGEREHEEREAENE=D
TRRE(ZZ—RF: &)

FENES  ZERFZEAEBRZ
ZEENHBEBRZIBTANE
;o EERREMRZHER

BE-_Z-A"ET-A=+t—RALFE"
MEAMAES XEHEAERLZE
EXNBBERARSEANER £ER
FEMRGZH( T —0F &)

EERRS  RERSHHPHEKX
s

ARAHRERE BT L ARE REHET
WARARBEEERIMEARENE
HMRFRIFREMRRNAFENE
AR5 RESAH(ZT—0F : &)

ZE-REER 159



Five Years Financial Summary

hFRFEifE

REEKERVBRRARREBBEAEN NS
MASBRELEYBFEC AMEaRER

A summary of the published consolidated results and of the consolidated assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set as below: REBEREEMEMNT
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-xE ZT-hf —T-MWF —T-=F —ZE—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THET TR THL
Results Ed
Revenue LON 2,914,842 2,870,794 2,373,272 1,472,488 1,313,330
Gross profit EH 1,261,994 1,092,490 864,866 541,129 464,187
Operating profit gER 689,093 657,973 463,194 266,190 223,256
Profit for the year attributable to N/NEIESZE DN
the owners of the Company JEIGF MEF 600,908 620,736 391,806 226,540 182,959
Financial position BBARR
Assets and liabilities BERBE
Total assets BEE 4,433,063 4,080,199 3,334,313 2,832,808 2,193,760
Total liabilities #waE 931,780 989,600 786,133 745,686 382,926
Capital and reserves AR
Total equity ERiEE 3,501,283 3,090,599 2,548,180 2,087,122 1,810,834

160 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016



D s

PAX Global Technology Limited
BERFEEBARLFE

Website #8911t www.paxglobal.com.hk




	封面

	財務概要
	銀行卡電子支付交易流程
	部份公司產品 ( 僅供參考)
	目錄
	公司資料
	公司架構簡表
	董事及高級管理層
	主席報告
	管理層之討論與分析
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底


